### **University of Toronto Archives**



# **Desmond Morton Fonds**

(B1999-0023, B2000-0010)

Harold Averill, 1999 Revised, 2001 Revised, 2019

### **Table of Contents**

Biographical Sketch	3
Scope and Content	6
Series 1: Personal and family files	7
Series 2: Correspondence – personal	7
Series 3: Correspondence –other	8
Series 4: University of Toronto – Administration	
Series 5: Lecture notes and other teaching materials	10
Series 6: Professional associations	11
Series 7: Other professional and community activities	12
Series 8: Political activities	
Series 9: Research files	
Series 10: Manuscripts and publications	21
Series 11: Addresses	
Series 12: Media productions	25
Appendix 1: University of Toronto administration	
Appendix 2: Lecture notes and other teaching materials	
Appendix 3: Political activities	
Appendix 4: Manuscripts and publications	
Appendix 5: Addresses	
Appendix 6: Media productions	

#### **Biographical Sketch**

Desmond Dillon Paul Morton was born in Calgary in 1937 to a family with a tradition of military service. On his father's side, his great-grandfather, Sir William Dillon Otter, led the column of the Canadian forces that marched on Battleford during the North-West Rebellion of 1885 and later captured Chief Poundmaker. In 1899 he commanded the first contingent of soldiers sent to the South African War. Desmond's father, Ronald Edward Alfred, began his military career in Winnipeg and served in the Canadian Army during World War II, where he commanded the Fort Garry Horse, a tank regiment, from 1940 to 1944. In 1950, as the recently appointed commander of the Army Prairie Command, he oversaw the joint military-civilian fight to save Winnipeg during its massive flood. In 1952 he was appointed head of Canada's Far East Military Mission in Japan, and in 1954 was sent to Laos as the first military adviser to Canada's truce team in Indo-China. (After his death in 1976, Dr. Morton established a prize in his honour to Erindale College.) On his mother's side, Dr. Morton was descended from the loyalist aid-de-camp of Benedict Arnold during the latter's brief period of service for Britain during the American Revolution.

Morton grew up leading the typical life of an 'army brat', moving frequently – his schooling began in Canada but he graduated from high school in Japan. Given this background, it is not surprising that he developed an interest in military history. He is currently Canada's pre-eminent military historian, following a tradition laid down a generation earlier by C. P. Stacey.

His official association with the military began in 1954 when he began a five-year stint as an officer cadet. In 1959 he was commissioned as a lieutenant in the Canadian Army and was promoted to captain in 1962. In 1961 he was stationed at Depot Company, Royal Canadian Army Service Corps, at Camp Borden, Ontario, where he trained recruits for Basic. The next year, he was put in charge of the Officer Candidate Program (with Jack Granatstein as his junior) in the Officer Training Company at the Service Corps School. Between 1963 and 1974, he was employed as an historical officer in the Historical Section of the National Defence Headquarters in Ottawa.

At the same time, Morton was acquiring a formal education. This began with a diploma at the College Militaire de St-Jean in St. Hyacinthe, Quebec (1957) and was followed with a BA (1959) from the Royal Military College in Kingston, Ontario. Morton then went to Oxford University as a Rhodes Scholar, where he received his second BA in 1961, followed by an MA in 1966. He then took his doctorate at the University of London, graduating in 1968. His doctoral thesis, 'Authority and policy in the Canadian Militia, 1868-1904' was supervised by the eminent historian, Kenneth Bourne, of the London School of Economics and Political Science.

#### **Biographical Sketch (continued)**

While in Ottawa, Morton served as visiting assistant professor at the University of Ottawa (1968-1969) and Western Ontario (1970-1971). In 1969 he was appointed assistant professor in history at Erindale College, University of Toronto, and settled in Mississauga. He was promoted to the position of associate professor in 1975. During his sabbatical term in 1975 he was visiting associate professor at the University of Michigan, and on his return was promoted to full professor. At the same time he took on increased administrative duties at Erindale College as associate dean. The next year he as also appointed vice-principal, academic and held both positions until 1979. From 1986 to 1994 he served as principal of Erindale College. Beginning in 1979, Dr. Morton also annually delivered a series of lectures at the Canadian Forces Staff College in Toronto; a few years later he began doing the same for the Canadian Forces Staff School. In 1994 he left the University of Toronto to become director of the McGill Institute for the Study of Canada in Montreal.

In addition to his academic and administrative activities, he has served on a number of professional associations and on committees and groups, often as president or chair, and a consultant to government. His active participation in the Canadian Historical Association, the Canadian Commission on Military History, and the journal *History and Social Science Teacher* began in the mid-1970s. Dr. Morton has been a frequent consultant to the Department of National Defence, most recently in the restructuring of the military following the Somalia inquiry, and to other federal agencies. At the provincial level he has advised on the teaching of history and on the role of private schools and universities in Ontario (he has adamantly opposed the creation of private universities). His involvement with community organizations has been with those in the areas in which he has resided, principally the Region of Peel.

Politics has always been one of Dr. Morton's passions and for many years it constituted a major part of his activities. In the mid-1960s he was an employee at the Ontario wing of the party and from then to the mid-1980s he was an active supporter of the New Democratic Party at the federal and provincial levels. He also played an active role in municipal politics in Mississauga, Ontario. (A detailed description of his activities may be found in the introduction to series 8.) In his various roles he helped to formulate party policies and wrote party briefs and reports. He also designed and wrote pamphlets and in 1978 was the standard bearer in his constituency for the anticipated federal election; when it did not materialize, other commitments forced him to step aside. At the municipal level, he was active in Hazel McCallion's election campaigns during her long tenure as mayor of Mississauga.

Dr. Morton's standing as a military historian and his interest in political and social issues are reflected in his voluminous writings. He has authored or co-authored over 35 books, some of which, such as his *Illustrated History of Canadian Labour*, The

#### **Biographical Sketch (continued)**

Short History of Canada, and A Military History of Canada have gone through several editions. Though many of his books have had military themes (and have met with critical and popular acclaim), those on social and political issues have also proved popular. In recent years, Dr. Morton has also turned his attention to constitutional issues and has written books aimed at young people. In addition to books, he has written numerous articles in academic journals, and many for non-academic ones. He has also found time to pen regular columns in newspapers such as the *Toronto Star*, *Ottawa Citizen*, the *Mississauga Times* (and *News*) and in the *United Church Observer*.

Dr. Morton early saw the value of moving images as a teaching and information tool. Between 1973 and the end of the 1980s, he produced a series of video accounts of issues in Canadian history relating to war, immigration, and labour. In recent years, some of these have been recast in CD-ROM format. He has, in addition, been an advisor to and participant in programmes produced by TV Ontario, and an occasional commentator on radio. He has also been a frequent speaker at academic, military and other functions.

#### **Employment**

1954-1959	Officer Cadet
1959-1962	Lieutenant, Canadian Army
1961-1963	Instructor Royal Canadian Army Service Corps School
1963-1964	Historical Officer National Defence Headquarters, Historical
	Section, General Staff
1964-1968	Assistant Provincial Secretary, New Democratic Party of Ontario
1968-1969	Visiting Assistant Professor, University of Ottawa
1969-1971	Assistant Professor, University of Toronto
1970-1971	Visiting Assistant Professor, University of Western Ontario
1971-1975	Associate Professor, University of Toronto
1975	Visiting Professor, University of Michigan
1975-	Professor of History, University of Toronto
1975-79	Associate Dean, Erindale College
1976-1979	Vice-Principal, Academic, Erindale College
1986-1994	Principal, Erindale College
1994-2001	Director, McGill Institute for the Study of Canada
1997 -	Professor of History, McGill University
1999 -	Professor Emeritus University of Toronto

#### **Scope and Content**

Records [textual, graphic, moving images, sound recordings], 1945-2000, 7.23 m.

These records document the life and career of social and military historian, Professor Desmond Morton. They relate primarily to his research and writings; his administrative and teaching duties at Erindale College, University of Toronto; his political activities in the New Democratic Party; and his work as a consultant to the government of Ontario on educational matters and to the federal government, primarily with regard to defence issues.

Included is correspondence, both personal and professional; administrative files from his years at Erindale College; course and lecture notes and other teaching materials; research notes, drafts of manuscripts and publications (with covering correspondence), and copies of his newspaper columns, and radio and moving image scripts. There are extensive files relating to other professional activities, to political activities generally and to election campaigns in particular. There also files on his work as a consultant, primarily with the Department of National Defence and, in particular, with regard to the Somalia affair. Related to these textual records are photographs, posters, audiotapes and videotapes.

Accessions: B1999-0023, B2000-0010

#### Access:

- B1999-0023, boxes 002 004 (Series 2) are closed until the death of the donor.
- B1999-0023, box 007, file 01 is closed until 1 January 2013.
- B1999-0023, box 008, file 09 is closed until 1 January 2069.
- The files in B1999-0023, box 009 are restricted for 20 years from latest date of file activity.
- The records in B2000-0010, box 001, and box 002, files 01 to 05 (in Series 7) are closed until 1 January 2017.
- All other files are open.

#### Series 1: Personal and family files

Records [textual], 1959-1994, .07 m.

This small series consists of material relating to Dr. Morton's education, and to honours awarded him. It includes papers given at Oxford and the London School of Economics and Political Science, a small set of essays written for self-education while at the Royal Canadian Army Service Corps at Camp Borden, Ontario, and a paper prepared while in charge of the officer candidate program at the Officer Training Company of the RCASC College (1962). The series also contains three appointment calendars (1973, 1974, 1976), the survivors of the daily documentation of a busy life, and an extensive press clipping file (excluding book reviews) about Dr. Morton. The series concludes with an obituary of his father, press clippings about his late wife, Janet, and manuscripts of newspaper articles on the local history of the Peel Region written by her.

Date(s)	Accession No.	/Box	(file)
1959-1994	B1999-0023	/001	(01) - (16)

#### **Series 2: Correspondence – personal**

Textual, 1975-1994, 0.33 m. **Access:** Closed until the death of the donor.

This series consists of personal correspondence, relating to primarily to family and business matters, friends, appraisals of manuscripts, and references. There is one file relating to donations, another to 'history', one to searches for employment, two to litigation, and another to politics (that is separate from his voluminous political correspondence in Series 7). The principal correspondents in the last category are Norman Allen and Jack Blyth, two individuals who also appear frequently in Series 3 and 7.

The arrangement of this series is by subject and chronologically within each grouping.

Date(s)	Accession No.	/Box	(file)
1975-1994	B1999-0023	/002	(01) - (08)
1977-1994	B1999-0023	/003	(01) - (10)
1982-1994	B1999-0023	/004	(01) - (03)

#### **Series 3:** Correspondence –other

Textual, 1972-2000, 0.39 m.

This correspondence files in this series consists principally of Dr. Morton's correspondence with his fellow historians and relating to his historical research. There are also files relating to journalism, labour issues, the media, with (primarily) the Canadian War Museum, and with a veteran of World War I.

The focus of the correspondence in the majority of the files ('history' from 1972-1986 and 'general – history' from 1988-1994), is historical research generally and the problems (and pleasures) associated with doing it, advice to other researchers, and Morton's own research and writings. Some of the letters provide illuminating insights on specific issues, particularly those associated with the First World War.

There follow two 'journalism' files (1979-1991) that consist principally of correspondence relating to Dr. Morton's letters to the editor, opinion pieces in newspapers and non-academic journals, such as the *United Church Observer*. There are a few references to activities in other than the print medium, especially television. Associated files are the general and topical correspondence files at the beginning of Series 10 (manuscripts and publications).

The next two files, on 'labour' (1977-1994), contain extensive correspondence between Dr. Morton and labour groups (with some correspondence with politicians such as Senator Eugene Forsey, and academics), principally on current labour-related issues. Dr. Morton was much in demand for writing articles and book reviews on labour issues, also pamphlets and other documents. Some of the letters relate to his academic writings, especially *Working People: An illustrated history of Canadian Labour*.

The 'media' file (1979-1988) contains correspondence relating primarily to Dr. Morton's involvement in radio and television programmes and in film productions. In addition to writing scripts for filmstrip and other programmes, Dr. Morton was a frequent guest on radio and television programmes, especially with the CBC and TV Ontario. His expertise was also sought by producers, an example being the CBC TV's two-part series on Sam Hughes in the early 1980s. This file should be read in conjunction with the files in Series 12 (media productions).

The series ends with a file on 'museums', mostly correspondence with the Canadian War Museum and another of correspondence with William B. Woods, a veteran of World War I. He and Dr. Morton exchanged a number of long, detailed letters between 1989 and 1991, occasioned by the latter's book, *Marching to Armageddon*.

Series 3: Correspondence –other cont'd

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1972-1992	B1999-0023	/005	(01) - (07)
1977-1994	B1999-0023	/006	(01) - (08)
1994-2000	B2000-0010	/004	(01) - (06)

**Series 4: University of Toronto – Administration** 

Textual, graphic, 1969-1994, 0.50 m.

**Access:** B1999-0023, box 007, file 01 is closed until 1 January, 2013.

B1999-0023, box 008, file 09 is restricted until 1 January 2069.

The files in B1999-0023, box 009 are restricted for 20 years from latest

date of file activity. All other files are open.

Most of Professor Morton's files relating to his time as principal of Erindale College remain with the administrative records of the College. The files in this series contain additional material relating to his activities at Erindale, and to his activities elsewhere at the University of Toronto, particularly committee work. Records relating to his teaching activities are found in Series 5.

The arrangement of the files in this series moves from the general to the specific, beginning with Dr. Morton's appointment files (1969-1993), to wider University matters and its committees, then to issues specific to Erindale College, to the Department of History and Dr. Morton's work with his students. Of the numerous University committees of which Dr. Morton was a member, three are documented here: the Academic Affairs Committee of the Governing Council (1981-1983), the Presidential Advisory Committee on Instructional Media, which he chaired (1980-1982), and the Presidential Advisory Committee on Institutional Strategies (1982-1983). There are references to some of his other committee work in the general correspondence file on the University (1979-1992). There are also files of his letters-to-the-editor, newspaper articles on the University of Toronto and education, and on the curriculum at Erindale College.

The bulk of this series, however, consists of correspondence with students and former students (often relating to letters of reference), and there is a file of student exam results covering Dr. Morton's teaching career at the University (1968-1974). There are also files on graduate students, particularly whose theses he supervised. These files provide insights into the problems faced by graduate students in the researching and writing of their research papers and theses, and into the role played by Dr. Morton in guiding them and ensuring that they completed their work.

#### **Series 4: University of Toronto – Administration (continued)**

An orientation address by Dr. Morton to new faculty members, accompanied by a large number of slides, has been removed from box 008, file 05 to Box 001P, file 01.

#### For a detailed listing of this series, see Appendix I.

Accession No./Box	(file)	
B1999-0023	/007	(01) - (13)
B1999-0023	/008	(01) - (11)
B1999-0023	/009	(01) - (10)
B1999-0023	/010	(01) - (04)
	B1999-0023 B1999-0023 B1999-0023	B1999-0023 /008 B1999-0023 /009

#### **Series 5: Lecture notes and other teaching materials**

Textual, 1972-1992, 0.41 m.

This series consists of material relating primarily to undergraduate and graduate history courses taught by Dr. Morton at the University of Toronto between the early 1970s and his departure for McGill in 1994. The non-U of T material consists of files on the history course he taught at the University of Western Ontario in 1975-1976 and two courses on federal and municipal political campaigning at Sheridan College and elsewhere in 1972 and 1973.

Of the thirteen University of Toronto undergraduate history courses listed in Dr. Morton's curriculum vitae, only one is not represented here – the history of Canadian labour (the files on this subject are also missing for the three graduate courses listed). He compiled careful typed lecture notes for his courses. They are accompanied by a shifting mixture of correspondence, memoranda, notes, course outlines, bibliographies, test and examination papers, and selected term essays.

The arrangement in this series is by course number and description, arranged in ascending order and chronologically within each course, except where the lecture notes relating to a particular course are spread over several years. Non-lecture material (where it exists) is interfiled with the accompanying lecture material.

For a detailed listing of the material in this series, see Appendix II.

Series 5: Lecture notes and other teaching materials

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1975-1993	B1999-0023	/010	(05) - (11)
1974-1987	B1999-0023	/011	(01) - (12)
1976-1992	B1999-0023	/012	(01) - (12)
1972-1991	B1999-0023	/013	(01) - (14)

#### **Series 6: Professional associations**

Textual, 1970-1993, 0.20 m.

Dr. Morton has long been active in professional associations relating to his academic and military interests. He has been a member of the Canadian Commission on Military History (chairman, 1976-1984); the Canadian Historical Association (he sat on its council from 1974-1980 and served as president in 1978-1979); and the journal, *History and Social Science Teacher* (member of its executive board from 1978 to 1991). He has also been a member of the Inter-University Seminar on Armed Forces and Society since 1977; of the Royal Society of Canada, to which he was elected in 1985; of Canada's National History Society (member of its executive board since 1994); and of the Association for Canadian Studies (also a member since 1994).

There are no files in this series on Canada's National History Society, or the Association for Canadian Studies (they date from Dr. Morton's departure for Montreal). Most of the files relate to Dr. Morton's involvement with the Canadian Historical Association and *History and Social Science Teacher*. The files of the former contain, in part, correspondence and a brief (which Dr. Morton drafted) relating to attempts between 1979 and 1981 to pass a federal freedom of information act.

The records are arranged alphabetically by name of organization.

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1970-1985	B1999-0023	/014	(01) - (08)
1978-1993	B1999-0023	/015	(01) - (09)
1996	B2000-0010	/002	(07)

#### **Series 7: Other professional and community activities**

Textual, 1979-1997, 1.37 m.

**Access: Restricted:** The following records are closed until 1 January, 2017: B2000-0010, box 001, and box 002, files 01 to 05. All other records in this series are open.

In spite of his busy academic and administrative schedules, Professor Morton has made time for what he termed 'community service' activities, usually in the form of committee work. His interests are focussed on educational, historical, military and community matters. Those documented as discrete entities in their own files are described forthwith.

Military interests include membership in the regimental senate of the Fort Garry Horse, the tank regiment that his father had commanded during World War II. In 1992 Dr. Morton became a founding member of the Canadian Battle of Normandy Foundation, established to help commemorate the 50<sup>th</sup> anniversary of 'D' Day. He is also a member of the Canadian Committee for the History of the Second World War, and has been a member of the Canadian War Museum Advisory Committee of the Canadian Museum of Civilization since 1992.

In 1979 Dr. Morton began delivering a series of lectures at the Canadian Forces (later the Canadian Forces Command and) Staff College in Toronto. One series (given in conjunction chiefly with Jack Granatstein) was on 'Canada as an Ally'; another, principally with the demographer, David Foot, was on Canada's labour market. These continued until shortly after Dr. Morton moved to Montreal. In 1982 he started a lecture series on Quebec-Canada relations and regionalism for the Canadian Forces Staff School, also in Toronto, which he continued until the Staff College was closed in 1994. Only the correspondence relating to these lectures survives in this series.

Dr. Morton has also been a frequent consultant to the Department of National Defence. He chaired the Department of National Defence's Advisory Group on Political Activity in Defence Establishments, which produced a report in 1987. From 1991 to 1994 he sat on its Advisory Committee on Social Change in the Canadian Forces. In January of 1997, Douglas Young, the Minister of National Defence, established a committee, the Special Advisory Group of Military Justice and Military Police Investigation Services, to advise the Ministry on the restructuring of the military. This was done in the wake of and a week after he had pulled the plug on the Somalia inquiry. Members of this committee included Dr. Morton, historians Jack Granatstein and David Bercuson, and retired army Lieutenant-Colonel General Charles Belzile. Brian Dickson, former chief justice of the Supreme Court of Canada, headed a separate

#### Series 7: Other professional and community activities (continued)

inquiry into the military justice system. Both groups were to submit their reports by the end of February.

This series contains general correspondence relating to Dr. Morton's relationship with the Department of National Defence, and correspondence, reports and other material relating to the specific military activities mentioned above. These records are located in B1999-0023, except for the following: DND affairs generally from 1994 on and specifically to the 1997 Special Advisory Group, and the Canadian Committee for the History of the Second World War, which are located in B2000-0010.

The federal government also benefitted from Dr. Morton's interest and experience in political matters. From 1991 to 1994 he was a member of the management committee of the Cooperative Security Competition Program in the Department of External Affairs and International Trade. In 1992 his vigorous support of the 'Yes Canada Campaign' resulted in an extensive file in his papers.

Dr. Morton also maintained an active interest in labour issues. He periodically served as an expert witness in court cases, the affidavits from two of which (from the mid-1980s) are represented in this series. He sat on the board of directors of the Canadian Labour Hall of Fame from 1990 to 1994.

Dr. Morton's interest in a variety of educational issues is reflected in the number of such organizations that he joined and in his work as a consultant. From 1981 to 1983, he was a member of the History Subject Advisory Group of the Ontario Assessment Instrument Pool. In 1984-1985 he served on the advisory committee to Ontario Commission on Private Schools (the Shapiro Commission). His commitment to public education led, at the end of the 1980s, to his opposition to the Coalition of Free-Standing University-Level Institutions which advocated the establishment of private universities in Ontario (the Ontario Council on University Affairs had released a discussion paper on the issue), in particular the proposed Wolfe University. In 1993 he conducted an appraisal of the Department of History at the University of Western Ontario for the Ontario Council of Graduate Studies. Beginning in 1981, Dr. Morton acted as a consultant to Grolier Ltd., first in relation to their 'Century of Canada Series' and then their 'Focus Series'. In the mid-1980s, he acted as a consultant to Cross Canada Books as it tried to attract American customers. All of these activities are described in this series.

Dr. Morton's concern for and involvement in community matters is reflected in a wide variety of activities concentrated in the Region of Peel where he lived and worked. He sat on the Peel Cheshire Home, on the Peel Police Community Race Relations Committee (for which he produced a report), was a member of the Peel Literary Guild, and acted as an advisor to Distress Line Peel Inc. He wrote a column

#### **Series 7: Other professional and community activities (continued)**

in the *Mississauga News* for several years, and also wrote about local history, as did his wife, Janet. Some of his writings can be found in series 8 and 10; hers are located in series 1

Typescripts of articles and addresses by Dr. Morton relating to some of the above topics may be found in the 'political and academic manuscripts' files (1969-1974) in series 10.

The arrangement in this series is alphabetically by name of organization.

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1993	B1999-0023	/015	(10)
1987-1993	B1999-0023	/016	(01) - (07)
1979-1994	B1999-0023	/017	(01) - (10)
1979-1994	B1999-0023	/018	(01) - (13)
1978-1993	B1999-0023	/019	(01) - (11)
1994-1997	B2000-0010	/001	(01) - (12)
1995-1997	B2000-0010	/002	(01) - (05)
1997	B2000-0010	/003	(01) - (09)

#### **Series 8: Political activities**

Textual, graphic, 1961-1994, 1.78 m.

Dr. Morton has always had a deep interest in the political process in Canada, viewed from the left of the political spectrum. This interest translated for twenty years into an active involvement in the New Democratic Party, which he joined in 1961, at the federal and provincial levels, and also in local politics. While sometimes quite critical of his party and individuals in it, Dr. Morton was, from the mid-1960s, active in the development of policies for all levels of the NDP.

Professor Morton first got involved in politics in a direct way as a boy in 1948 when he distributed leaflets for the Saskatchewan CCF. His got his first taste of political organizing in 1962 while trying, as he put it, 'to unearth New Democrats in the wilds of Dufferin Simcoe' (letter to Donald C. MacDonald of 28 June 1970). In 1964 he accepted the position of assistant provincial secretary to the party where he did everything from helping formulate policies to writing speeches and the texts of brochures and pamphlets. He was also deeply involved in committee work (especially regarding the issue of bilingualism and biculturalism) and helped organize local election

#### **Series 8: Political activities (continued)**

campaigns. Dr. Morton held this post until mid-1966 when he resigned to take up post-graduate work at the London School of Economics.

Dr. Morton's political activities also spilled over to the federal level. During the 1965 federal election he acted as a speechwriter for Tommy Douglas; these speeches have survived in this series. After his return to Canada in 1968, Dr. Morton initially lived in Ottawa, providing an opportunity to become immersed in federal politics while continuing his involvement at the provincial level. He apparently found politics at the federal level to be less satisfying than at the provincial, for a factor in his move to Toronto in 1969 was his desire 'to resume a closer and more effective conjunction with politics' (letter to Rita Hindon, 9 January, 1970). Once settled in, he became a member of the provincial executive of the NDP and its Policy Review Committee (which he chaired from December 1969 to the end of 1972). He was also assigned onerous duties associated with membership and finance, which he did not care for, his principal interest being policy development and public relations. He therefore continued to chair the publications committee, which gave him the freedom to write pamphlets, campaign literature, and press releases (he even designed desk calendars), and to give speeches as requested. In 1970 he was selected as the provincial executive representative in a number of constituencies to the west of Toronto in what is now known as the '905 area'. Dr. Morton also played an active role in the 1971 provincial election campaign.

Beginning in 1973, Dr. Morton reduced his active involvement in the Ontario NDP – he stayed on as a member of the Policy Review Committee for a time – but was always available to give and advice and often speeches. He remained active in elections in local provincial ridings; serving, for example, in 1975 as campaign chair for David Busby's campaign in Mississauga North. At the same time, his wife, Janet, was also active in the local ridings in the Region of Peel. In 1977, they both worked hard in a nearly successful attempt to get Busby elected in his second try in the constituency.

After his return from England in the fall of 1968, Dr. Morton took up an assistant professorship at the University of Ottawa for a year. He was shortly afterwards elected to the federal council of the NDP that October as a delegate from the Ontario party, a position he held until 1972. He wrote policy documents for the national conference held in Winnipeg in 1970 and campaign pamphlets for the federal party over several years thereafter. He was deeply involved in the 1972 federal election and was a candidate in Mississauga North constituency for the anticipated 1978 federal election, but had to withdraw because of other commitments when it was not called. He continued his involvement at the constituency level, however, designing and writing campaign literature and writing speeches for the NDP candidates in Mississauga North in the 1979, 1980 and 1984 federal elections. In other ways, he was also available to provide advice to the federal party, serving, for example, as a consultant on defence policy in the mid-1980s.

#### **Series 8: Political activities (continued)**

At the municipal level Dr. Morton's principal involvement was with politics in Mississauga. He was a supporter of Hazel McCallion during her successful campaign for mayor of that city in 1978, and was an active member of successive re-election committees through 1985, serving variously as secretary and in charge of publicity. (This support was returned in kind as Mayor McCallion was a forceful booster of Erindale College during Dr. Morton's years as vice-principal academic and as principal.) In Toronto, he actively supported the campaign of Karl Jaffray during the 1972 municipal elections.

The records in this series document his activities in considerable detail and provide much information about the decision making process within the NDP at the federal and provincial levels. There is extensive correspondence, particularly for the years 1969 to 1972, after which date the volume decreases somewhat, though still a steady, respectable level. His early correspondents were often with the most senior party politicians and officials, including Donald C. MacDonald and David and Stephen Lewis. He also maintained a lively exchange of letters with party officials from other provinces (Walter Ross in British Columbia, Doug Rowland from Manitoba, and Laurier Lapierre and Raymond Laliberté from Quebec are examples) and with union officials. Later correspondents included Michael Cassidy, Ed Broadbent, and individuals with broad political interests such as Eugene Forsey and Mel Hurtig. Attached to this correspondence is a plethora of speeches, radio scripts, and reports.

Many, but not all, of the political pamphlets and some of the political articles Dr. Morton wrote are filed after the general correspondence, in chronological order.

Next are extensive files on the federal elections between 1966 and 1984, provincial elections between 1963 and 1985, and on local political contests, especially in the Region of Peel/Mississauga areas. These files contain any or all of the following: campaign literature, press coverage, posters, and photographs. More specifically, for example, the files for the federal campaigns between 1979 and 1984 contain, amongst other items, mockups for campaign leaflets, drafts of speeches, press releases, and (for the 1984 election) radio scripts for Morton's 'Election Talk' series on the Toronto radio station CFRB. In addition to writing pamphlets, Morton designed some of the brochures and wrote extensively in the Mississauga press about local politics.

The general correspondence files in this series are arranged chronologically. They are followed by files containing his political writings and material on the federal, provincial, and local election contests. The arrangement is chronological within each grouping.

#### **Series 8: Political activities (continued)**

Researchers are also directed to Dr. Morton's research files on the New Democratic Party in series 11. Drafts of many of his political writings and addresses, especially those relating to the NDP, may be found in the 'political and academic manuscripts' files (1969-1973) and in the 'non-refereed publications' section in series 10. Included with the former files are a few addresses by his wife, Janet.

#### For a listing of the material in this series, see Appendix III.

**Posters and other oversized campaign literature** have been removed from the following files and filed separately as indicated:

From	To
B1999-0023/020(06)	B1999-0023/027(02)
B1999-0023/022(09) & (10)	B1999-0023/027(03)
B1999-0023/023(09)	B1999-0023/027(04)
B1999-0023/023(11)	B1999-0023/027(05)
B1999-0023/023(15)	B1999-0023/027(06)
B1999-0023/023(18)	B1999-0023/027(07)
B1999-0023/020(20)	B1999-0023/027(08) & (09)
B1999-0023/023(21) & (22)	B1999-0023/027(10)
B1999-0023/023(23)	B1999-0023/027(11)

**Posters and other oversized campaign literature** have been removed from the following files and filed separately as indicated:

From	To
B1999-0023/023(24) & (26)	B1999-0023/027(12)
B1999-0023/024(03)	B1999-0023/027(13)
B1999-0023/024(05)	B1999-0023/027(14)
From	To
B1999-0023/024(07)	1999-0023/0027(15)
B1999-0023/024(08)	B1999-0023/027(16)
B1999-0023/024(09)	B1999-0023/027(17)
B1999-0023/025(19) & (20)	B1999-0023/027(18)
B1999-0023/025(22)	B1999-0023/027(19)
B1999-0023/025(26)	1999-0023/0027(20)
B1999-0023/026(02)	B1999-0023/027(21)
B1999-0023/026(08)	B1999-0023/027(22)
B1999-0023/026(13)	B1999-0023/027(23)

**Series 8: Political activities (continued)** 

**Photographs** have been removed from certain files and filed separately as indicated:

From	To
B1999-0023/023(21)	B1999-0023/001P(02)
B1999-0023/023(25)	B1999-0023/001P(03)
B1999-0023/024(06)	B1999-0023/001P(04)
B1999-0023/024(08)	B1999-0023/001P(05)
B1999-0023/024(10)	B1999-0023/001P(06)
B1999-0023/025(23)	B1999-0023/001P(07)
B1999-0023/025(26)	B1999-0023/001P(08)
B1999-0023/026(01)	B1999-0023/001P(09)
B1999-0023/026(02)	B1999-0023/001P(10)
B1999-0023/026(07)	B1999-0023/001P(11)
B1999-0023/026(08)	B1999-0023/001P(12)
B1999-0023/026(11)	B1999-0023/001P(13)
B1999-0023/026(13)	B1999-0023/001P(14)

Date(s)	Accession No.	/Box	(file)
1961-1971	B1999-0023	/020	(01) - (09)
1971-1990	B1999-0023	/021	(01) - (07)
1967-1994	B1999-0023	/022	(01) - (10)
1963-1992	B1999-0023	/023	(01) - (26)
1964-1984	B1999-0023	/024	(01) - (16)
1963-1992	B1999-0023	/025	(01) - (27)
1972-1993	B1999-0023	/026	(01) - (13)
1968-1984	B1999-0023	/027	(02) - (23)
1972-1985	B1999-0023	/001P	(02) - (14)

#### Series 9: Research files

Textual, 1898-1992, 1.23 m.

This series contains applications for research grants and research leave, along with a selection of Dr. Morton's research files (the results of his research are documented in series 10). In part, this series documents the problems that academics face in finding the resources to undertake research and the time to write and find publishers for their works. Dr. Morton was more successful than most; he received eighteen major research awards between 1970 and 1994 (two were declined). His research fields were war and Canadian society, returned soldiers and civil reestablishment, Canadian military history, nationalism in Canada, Canadian labour and industrial relations history, Canadian social policy, and Ontario history and politics.

The applications are primarily for Canada Council, Killam Fellowships and SSHRC grants. Dr. Morton's first Canada Council grant, for example, enabled him to research and publish *A Peculiar Kind of Politics: Canada's Overseas Ministry in the First World War* (1982). A combination of grants from University of Toronto, the federal Department of Labour, the Killam Foundation (1983-1984) and SSHRC provided him with the resources and leave time to research and write *Winning the Second Battle: Canadian Veterans and the Return to Civilian Life, 1915-1930* that was published to much acclaim in 1987. These applications and others are represented in this series. Some information on research grants may also be found in series 10.

The series also contains a collection of original documents and publications, consisting mostly of pamphlets, but including some articles, flyers, correspondence, minutes, radio scripts, research papers, discussion papers, and reports that Dr. Morton assembled during his research on the labour movement in Canada and on socialism. The material on labour, which begins with a report by Mackenzie King in 1898, covers the principal events in labour history in Canada over the next eighty years, ranging from the Knights of Labour at the turn of the century, to the 'one big union' movement in the teens, to repressive labour legislation in the 1930s, to wage controls and the emergence of Canadian unions in the 1970s and the 1980s.

The research material on socialism covers the broader aspects of the topic, then communism, and moves on to the Canadian Commonwealth Federation from its founding in the 1930s, to its evolution into the New Democratic Party in 1971 and more recent events. The files on the CCF include some original correspondence, excerpts from Mackenzie King's diaries, and a large collection of pamphlets and brochures. There is a good collection of pamphlets and articles on the founding of the NDP and its later activities (some written by Morton). There are also files on the activities of the NDP federal council from 1977 to 1979, the national convention in 1987 in Montreal and on the Quebec wing of the party.

#### **Series 9: Research files (continued)**

The arrangement of the files on labour and socialism is by topic and chronologically within each.

Over the years, amid research for many publications, Dr. Morton compiled a massive volume of research, primarily on 5" x 8" cards, only a small portion of which was retained by the University of Toronto Archives [see box 031]. Some of the cards retained contain research undertaken for articles on non-military themes, particularly local history. The bulk, however, relates to research on the South African War, on which Dr. Morton penned a couple of articles but never the comprehensive history of Canada's involvement in that conflict that he was encouraged to write but never found the time to produce.

Oversized material has been removed from the following files and filed separately as indicated:

From	To
B1999-0023/028(07)	B1999-0023/027(24)
B1999-0023/028(08)	B1999-0023/027(25)
B1999-0023/028(14)	B1999-0023/027(26)
B1999-0023/029(04)	B1999-0023/027(27)
B1999-0023/029(14)	B1999-0023/027(28)
B1999-0023/029(17)	B1999-0023/027(29)
B1999-0023/030(01)	B1999-0023/027(29)
B1999-0023/030(04)	B1999-0023/027(30)
B1999-0023/030(05)	B1999-0023/027(31)

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1969-1984	B1999-0023	/026	(14) - (18)
1919-1987	B1999-0023	/027	(24) - (31)
1898-1992	B1999-0023	/028	(01) - (17)
1913-1982	B1999-0023	/030	(01) - (17)
1977-1987	B1999-0023	/029	(01) - (05)
	B1999-0030	/031	[card indices]

#### Series 10: Manuscripts and publications

Records [textual, graphic], 1945-1996, 2.90 m.

The files in this series contain materials relating to the research, writing and publishing of articles, chapters of books, and books by Professor Morton (applications for research grants and leaves of absence are documented in series 7). Most of the manuscripts have accompanying correspondence files, some voluminous, though there are a few manuscripts with no covering correspondence and some correspondence files for works for which the manuscripts have not survived. The manuscripts themselves consist primarily of 'clean' typescripts, along with some annotated drafts, copyedited typescripts, and galley proofs. A few of the typescripts are annotated. Some typescripts are of writings that have not been published.

The supporting correspondence files document the interactions between Morton and his publishers. It provides, in passing, interesting insights into the state of book publishing in Canada. The files contain any or all of the following: correspondence, contracts, memoranda, notes, partial drafts of manuscripts, readers' reports with comments thereon, reviews, addresses (generally at readings), and royalty statements. For any particular work, the correspondence addresses issues arising from the writing of it, including the collection of research material, the hiring of research assistants, and the completion of drafts of the manuscript, publicity and financial matters. The files on books relating to World Wars I and II contain, in particular, extensive correspondence between the author and veterans or their offspring including, occasionally, original documents and a photograph or two.

In addition to his writings that were published in academic journals, by the NDP, and in journals devoted to military and political matters, and elsewhere, Dr. Morton served as a columnist for or had articles commissioned for a number of newspapers and magazines. These included the *United Church Observer*, *Toronto Star*, *Ottawa Citizen*, *Globe and Mail*, *Mississauga Times*, *Mississauga News*, *Montreal Gazette*, *Maclean's Magazine*, *National Network News*, *National Post*, *Canadian Speeches*, and *Confluences*.

Dr. Morton was also much sought after as a book reviewer, primarily for his expertise but also because he always responded promptly if he committed himself. His reviews have appeared in *The American Historical Review*, *Armed Forces and Society*, *Books in Canada*, *Business History Review*, *Canadian Defence Quarterly*, *Canadian Historical Review*, *Canadian Military History*, *Canadian Transport*, *Dalhousie Review*, *History and Social Science Teacher*, *International History Review*, *International Journal*, *Labour and Industrial Relations Review*, *Labour/Le Travail*, *Literary Review of Canada*, *Military Affairs*, *Military History*, *National History*, *Ontario History*, *The Globe and Mail*, *The Montreal Gazette*, *The Toronto Star*, *Revue d'histoire de l'Amérique française*, and the Canadian Association of Labour Media.

#### **Series 10: Manuscripts and publications (continued)**

The series begins with number of files of general correspondence relating to Professor Morton's publishing activities, followed by files on specific issues such as public lending rights, writings for magazines such as the *National Network News* and the *United Church Observer*, and for encyclopedias, yearbooks and other reference books. Next are a large number of files containing the articles and columns Dr. Morton wrote for the *Toronto Star* and the *Ottawa Citizen*, along with smaller files on his articles and letters in the *Globe and Mail*, the *Winnipeg Free Press* and several University of Toronto student newspapers.

Then come a number of files entitled 'Political and academic manuscripts', covering the years 1968 to 1973. At the beginning of each year there is a list of contents. These files contain typescripts of articles, chapters of books, whole books, book reviews, a few letters to the editor, scripts for media productions, political briefs and reports, and addresses, with the occasional offprint. Manuscripts that were eventually published are normally noted with an asterisk; those with more than one draft are likely to be spread over more than one year. The political writings relate primarily to current events at the federal level (e.g., the FLQ crisis of 1970), to social democracy generally, and the New Democratic Party in particular. The scripts for media productions include ones on the North-West Rebellion of 1885 and the Winnipeg general strike of 1919.

The arrangement of the 'political and academic manuscripts' files is generally chronological. There are variations within each year; for example, the scholarly papers tend to be grouped together. Covering correspondence for these typescripts may be found later in the series under the appropriate title of the work.

These files are followed by several files of book proposals and outlines. The remaining files, which form the bulk of this series, contain correspondence, drafts, and other information relating to specific manuscripts. They are grouped according to the format used in Dr. Morton's curriculum vitae: scholarly and professional work – articles; scholarly and professional work – books and chapters/ articles in books; non-refereed publications; and book reviews. Many journal and newspaper articles and most pamphlets of a political nature are found in series 8. Some reports may be found in series 7. Media productions are filed in series 12.

The arrangement within each grouping is by the year in which a work was published or, if not published, by the date of the manuscript insofar as it can be determined.

As a part of his research, teaching, and writing activities, Dr. Morton has assembled a large and well-known collection of photographs and slides, most of which remain in his possession. Only a small number of photographs, relating largely to his political activities, are found in this *fonds*.

**Series 10: Manuscripts and publications (continued)** 

### For a detailed listing of the records in this series see Appendix IX.

Oversized material has been removed from the following files and filed separately as indicated:

From	To
B1999-0023/033(08)	B1999-0023/027(32)
B1999-0023/033(10)	B1999-0023/027(32)
B1999-0023/034(01)	B1999-0023/027(32)
B1999-0023/034(06)	B1999-0023/027(32)

Photographs have been removed from the following files and filed separately:

From	То
B1999-0023/051(07)	B1999-0023/001P(15)
B1999-0023/052(07)	B1999-0023/001P(16)

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1971-1994	B1999-0023	/027	(32)
1970-1994	B1999-0023	/032	(01) - (09)
1971-1994	B1999-0023	/033	(01) - (12)
1968-1994	B1999-0023	/034	(01) - (13)
1970-1972	B1999-0023	/035	(01) - (06)
1972-1973	B1999-0023	/036	(01) - (06)
1969-1994	B1999-0023	/037	(01) - (12)
1968-1994	B1999-0023	/038	(01) - (13)
1970-1972	B1999-0023	/039	(01) - (06)
1978-1984	B1999-0023	/040	(01) - (09)
1979-1993	B1999-0023	/041	(01) - (09)
1980-1993	B1999-0023	/042	(01) - (08)
1982-1986	B1999-0023	/043	(01) - (10)
1983-1990	B1999-0023	/044	(01) - (08)
1980-1994	B1999-0023	/045	(01) - (13)
1985-1990	B1999-0023	/046	(01) - (07)
1970-1972	B1999-0023	/047	(01) - (06)
1986-1994	B1999-0023	/048	(01) - (11)
1989-1993	B1999-0023	/049	(01) - (13)
1987-1994	B1999-0023	/050	(01) - (10)
1988-1995	B1999-0023	/051	(01) - (07)
1945-1994	B1999-0023	/052	(01) - (16)

**Series 10: Manuscripts and publications (continued)** 

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1971-1994	B1999-0023	/053	(01) - (44)
1986-1994	B1999-0023	/054	(01) - (03)
1994-1996	B2000-0010	/002	(12) - (14)

#### Series 11: Addresses

Textual, 1971-1997, 0.22 cm.

This series consists of addresses and speeches (formal and otherwise) that are not included in files in other series, along with covering correspondence. The series begins with correspondence regarding speaking engagements (1971-1994), followed by the addresses themselves (1974-1994). Some of the addresses are academic in nature (the majority of these were delivered at Erindale College), while others were delivered to labour, military and service groups, with which Dr. Morton was involved or had an interest. There is also the occasional radio talk. The file for 1982 (for example), which lists the public lectures and papers read for that year, provides an indication of Dr. Morton's very active life as a public speaker.

The addresses are divided into two sections. The first consists of the covering correspondence and the addresses filed chronologically (one folder per year). These are followed by what Dr. Morton describes as 'slide programme scripts' – lists of slides, often described at some length, associated with lectures and addresses that he gave – and the texts of addresses that have been annotated with comments on accompanying slides (the slides themselves are not present). Texts for a few of the 'slide programme scripts' may be found with the 'political and academic manuscripts' in series 8.

Most of the correspondence is filed separately and arranged chronologically. The addresses are arranged chronologically by section.

For a listing of this series, see Appendix V.

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1971-1987	B1999-0023	/054	(04) - (11)
1974-1994	B1999-0023	/055	(01) - (03)
1993, 1997	B2000-0010	/002	(06) - (08)

#### **Series 12: Media productions**

Dr. Morton early realized the potential of using the visual and sound media as a method of documenting historically significant events in Canadian history, which could then be used as teaching aids in the classroom, with possible distribution to a wider audience. The principal resource for these projects was a rapidly expanding collection of photographs and slides that he had been amassing for some years. Beginning in 1970, he began to meld the old technology of slide lectures, which had been in use at the University of Toronto since before the turn of the century, with the newer medium of television and the emerging one of video. The potential excited one film maker who wrote, "I think an excellent programme could be produced from your slide collection on the Northwest Rebellion...By throwing the slides up on a screen we would then be able to get slide animation, by using the television camera to pan from one part of the scene to another and zoom in on some detail, or incident."

The old and the new technologies were used in tandem, as the video production, though relatively inexpensive to produce, cost much more than slides and took time to realize. For general classroom use, Dr. Morton created a series of slide programmes, accompanied by notes and, occasionally, scripts, on various aspects of Canadian history. The topics ranged from Canadian nationalism and imperialism, to the North-West Campaign of 1885, the Manitoba School Question, immigration during the two decades before World War I, and to working women in the post-Confederation era. Some of these themes were developed more fully in his moving image productions that also took shape during the decade.

Dr. Morton sought support and funds for his video projects primarily through officials at the University of Toronto, the principal division being the Instructional Media Centre, but also through educational and broadcasting channels outside the University. Officials early recognized the necessity of creating a product with an appeal beyond the confines of the University – the videos would fill an educational niche as "a medium for a kind of scholarly publication cum library or similar resource". They were modestly successful in achieving that goal.

Dr. Morton's first foray into the realm of video production was the 16-minute production on the 'Winnipeg General Strike' that appeared in 1973. Other productions followed in rapid succession over the next six years – ('Canada's First War: The 1885 Rebellion' (1974), 'The Fourth Wave: Newcomers to Canada, 1896-1914' (1974), 'The Canadian General: Sir William Otter (1975), 'The Splendid Dream: Canadian Labour and the Left' (for Ontario Educational Communications Authority, 1975-6), 'The Conscription Crisis, 1917' (1977), 'Bread and Roses: The Struggle of Canadian Working Women' (1978), and, in 1979, four titles, two of which revisited old themes: 'The Great Canadian Temperance Crusade', 'The Winnipeg General Strike, 1919', 'Saskatchewan, 1885', and 'Struggle for Identity'. For 'The Splendid Dream', financial support was sought from the United Steelworkers of America and interviews were conducted with, amongst others, Tommy Douglas and David Lewis. Most of these videos are present in this series (see appendix VII).

#### **Series 12: Media productions (continued)**

Dr. Morton's involvement in moving image productions has continued since this auspicious beginning. In May of 1980, TV Ontario launched *Canadians in Conflict*, a six-part series "on major traumas in our history". It was conceived by Dr. Morton who was also its on-air narrator. It incorporated several of his video productions, beginning with 'Bread and Roses' and ending with 'Struggle for Identity'. In 1980 and 1981 he compiled tape-film strips for NC Multimedia on 'Canada in the First World War' and 'Canada in the Twenties'. In 1983, he worked with an independent company on a filmstrip production entitled 'The Canadian Constitution', and on 'Canada and World War I', for which he was an advisor. In 1985 he revisited the North-West Rebellion for the third time in a production for the National Museum of Civilization that was, in 1993, converted to a new format, CD-ROM. In 1989, as a member of the advisory board of TV Ontario, he produced 'Lift, right and centre: Party politics in Canada'. He also conducted a number of interviews for the program 'TVO at 25'.

This series begins with a correspondence file on Dr. Morton's sound and moving image productions generally, followed by files on specific productions, some of which are accompanied by videos. The correspondence files and videos are arranged by project date. These files are followed by others documenting Dr. Morton slide programmes, with accompanying notes and occasional scripts, for formal lectures at Erindale College and for public addresses outside the university. The textual records conclude with a file on a CBC radio interview. Accompanying these records are a number of audiotapes that Dr. Morton collected or recorded with an eye to future research use. These include a CBC production, 'Project '66: The frail revolutionary, J. S. Woodsworth', and an interview he recorded with Tommy Douglas and his wife in 1984.

Other series with related material are Series 5 (teaching materials), Series 7 (other professional and community activities) and Series 10 (addresses).

Date(s)	Accession No./Box	(file)	
1970-1993	B1999-0023	/055 (04) – (36)	
1974-1979	B1999-0023	/001M - 004M	[videos]
1966, 1984	B1999-0023	/001S - 003S	[audiotapes]

### **Appendix 1: University of Toronto -- administration**

/Box	(file)	Description	Date(s)
B199	9-0023		
/007	(01)	Correspondence and forms re Dr. Morton's appointments and promotions at the University of Toronto 1969-	1003
	(02)	Correspondence – University of Toronto (general)	1979-1992
	(03)	Appointment as Provost, U of T (and withdrawal)	1983
	(04)	Governing Council. Academic Affairs Committee	1982-1983
	(05)	Presidential Advisory Committee on Instructional Media	1979-1983
	(06)	Presidential Advisory Committee on Institutional Strategie	s 1982-1983
	(07)	Letters-to-the-editor and newspaper articles by Desmond	
		Morton on the University of Toronto and educational issue	es
		generally	1972-1983
	(08)	'The Third Option' [in education]. Press coverage	1978-1979
	(09)	"I'll never forget' file" re DM's position as vice-president	
		academic and associate dean, Erindale College	1979
	(10)	Erindale College – general correspondence	1976-1986
	(11)	Appointment as Principal, Erindale College	1986
	(12)	Erindale College – 'official' correspondence as principal	1986-1988
	(13)	Correspondence re reappointment as principal of	
		Erindale College	1991
/008	(01) –	(02) Awards donated by DM to Erindale College and	
		honours bestowed upon him. Correspondence	1977-1993
	(03)	Erindale College. Curriculum – press coverage	1977-1979
	(04)	Erindale College. Press coverage (general)	1984-1991
	(05)	Desmond Morton's orientation address to new faculty	
		members (with slides), 1989-09-05 [separated to photos]	1989
	(06)	Centre for Industrial Relations	1985
	(07)	Graduate Department of History. Memoranda, reports, etc	. 1971-1987
	(08)	'Graduate studies in history, University of Toronto'	
		handbook, n.d. [1973]	
	(09)	Lists of students in courses, examination results	1968-1994
		(11) Correspondence with students	1971-1982
/009		(02) Correspondence with students	1983-1993
	(03)	Appraisals of theses (committee member)	1973-1976
	(04)	Graduate students. Correspondence and appraisals	1974-1994
		(06) Undergraduate students – independent study	1992-1994
		(08) Correspondence with graduate students (general)	1979-1986
	(09) –	(10) Graduate students (theses supervised) 1973-	1991
/010	(01) –	(04) Graduate students (theses supervised)	1976-1994

### **Appendix 2: Lecture notes and other teaching materials**

/Box (	( <b>file</b> ) 9-0023	Description	Date(s)
/010	(05)	University of Western Ontario. History 457. Course outlines and reading lists	1975-1976
	(06)	University of Toronto. Correspondence re teaching 1973-	
		•	1991-1993
	(07)	Notes on essay writing	[n.d.]
	(08)	HIS 110Y: 'Headlines and history' (proposed)	1986-1987
	(09)	HIS 205E: 'History of Canada'. Lecture notes	r., 41
		[see also course 301/301E/323]	[n.d.]
011	(01)	HIS 261Y: 'Post-Confederation Canada'. Tutorials 1984-	1985
	(02)	HIS 262Y: 'History of Canada'. Course outlines,	
		tests, exams, tutorials	1982-1983
	(03)	HIS 262Y: 'History of Canada'. Course outlines,	
		bibliographies, tests, exams, tutorials 1985-	
	(04)	HIS 262Y: 'History of Canada'. Lecture notes	1985-1986
	(05)	HIS 262Y: 'History of Canada'. Bibliography	1986-1987
	(06)	HIS 300/300Y: 'The military tradition in American	1006 1007
	(07)	history'. Course outlines, lecture notes, exams (08) HIS 301/301E: 'Canadian parties and politics'.	1986-1987
	(07) –	Course material, readings, lecture notes	[n.d.]
	(09) –	(11) HIS 313/313Y: 'Canadian labour and the Left'.	լուս.յ
	(0)	Historiographical exercises, term papers	1974-1975,
			1985-1986
	(12)	HIS 323: 'Canadian parties and politics since	
		Confederation' [see also 301/301E]. Lecture notes	1977-1978
/012	(01)	HIS 323Y. Term paper	1977-1978
	(02)	HIS 323: 'Canadian political parties'. 'Program for	
		1981'; bibliography	1981-1982
	(03) -	(04) HIS 328/328F: 'Canadian nationalism'. Course	
		material, lecture notes, fall term 1992	1992
	(05)	HIS 364: 'Canada and War'. Lecture notes 1976-	
	(06)	HIS 364: 'Canada and War'. Term papers	1969-1970,
	(07)	HIG 2650: (History of Outside) Comments in	1976-1977
	(07)	HIS 365S: 'History of Ontario'. Course material,	1981-1982
	(08) _	Spring, 1982 (09) HIS 368H/368S: 'The Canadian West'. Course	1901-1902
	(00) –	material, notes on bibliographic sources, lecture notes,	
		Spring 1982	1981-1982
	(10) -	(11) HIS 368H/368F: 'Canada and the First World War'.	_,
	` /	Course outlines and bibliography, student evaluations	1986-1988
		- <del></del>	

### Appendix 2: Lecture notes and other teaching materials (continued)

/Box (	( <b>file</b> )	Description	Date(s)
	(12)	HIS 368H/368F: 'Canada in the First World War'. Bibliography	1988-1989
/013	(01)	HIS 368S: 'Canada and the First World War', Winter term, 1989. Course outlines, tests, term paper (03) HIS 368H/368F: 'Canada and the First World War'.	1989
		Lecture notes, course outlines, bibliography, tests (07) HIS 392/368Y: 'Canada and War'. Lecture notes	1990-1991
	(08)	(winter term 1982), term papers HIS 402E: 'Canadian historiography'. Lecture notes,	1981-1983
	(09)	course material HIS 1100: 'History of Canada' – Carl Berger.	1972-1977
	` /	Colloquium	1988
	(10) – (13) (14)	<ul><li>(12) HIST 1102: Canada, 1840 to the present'.</li><li>Correspondence, notes, bibliographies</li><li>W.P.A. Course on political campaign management (federal Courses on political campaign management (municipal).</li></ul>	1981-1983 al) 1972
		Sheridan College, Municipal Election School	1972-1973
Appe	ndix 3:	Political activities	
/020	(01) (02) (03)	Correspondence – Ontario NDP Correspondence – Assistant provincial secretary Assistant provincial secretary – policy papers and report	1961-1963 1964-1966
	(04)	written by Desmond Morton Assistant provincial secretary – addresses by Desmond	[196-] -1966
	(05) –	Morton (09) Correspondence, 1966 – June, 1971	1966 1966-1971
/021	(01) –	(07) Correspondence, July, 1971 – 1990	1971-1990
/022	(01)	Correspondence with Norman Allen about political	1000 1000
		events in Quebec (04) Correspondence	1988-1990 1991-1994
	(05) –	(07) Political writings by Desmond Morton, 1967-1987, 1990	1967-1990
	(08) (09)	Political activities of Desmond Morton – press coverage Quebec – political material, primarily NDP [oversized	1977-1991
	(10)	material removed to /027(03)]  Quebec – political material, 1980 referendum [oversized	1970-1977
	(10)	material removed to /027(03)]	1977-1980

### **Appendix 3: Political activities (continued)**

/Box (file)		Description	Date(s)		
P.1006	The following section contains writings, primarily by Desmond Morton, relating to the New Democratic Party at the federal and provincial levels.				
	9-0023				
/023	(01)	New Democratic Party of Canada. Federal convention ("Socialism '70"), Winnipeg, 1969. Discussion papers,			
		including #5 – 'Poverty and regional disparity: A			
		survey of issues' by Desmond Morton	1969		
	(02)	New Democratic Party of Canada. Policy Review	1707		
	(02)	Committee. Discussion papers, March, 1983	1983		
	(03)	New Democratic Party of Canada. Policy papers and	1705		
	(00)	pamphlets	1976, 1984		
	(04)	Morton, Desmond. NDP now: the case for a majority	-,,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-,-		
	` /	party of the democratic left (pamphlet). Published by			
		DPM	1971		
	(05)	Morton, Desmond. Campaign guide: The New Democrati	c		
		Party. Ottawa: 4 <sup>th</sup> edition (?) Pamphlet	[197-]		
	(06)	[Morton, Desmond?]. The NDP and Canadian independe	nce		
		Toronto and Ottawa: New Democratic Publications			
		Pamphlet	1972		
	(07)	Morton, Desmond. Publicity guide: The New Democratic			
		Party. Ottawa and Toronto: New Democratic			
		Publications. Pamphlet	1972		
	(08)	Morton, Desmond. 'Insight: Towards an NDP definition',	,		
		The New Democrat, July-August, 1973, 4-5; with			
		covering correspondence, 1986 [oversized material			
	(0.0)	removed to /027(04)] 1973-1	1986		
	(09)	Morton, Desmond. 'Rent control – a long term liability			
		for NDP in Ontario', Viewsletter, 1, 7 (Aug-Sept., 1976),	1076		
	(10)	7-11	1976		
	(10)	[Morton, Desmond?] The New Democratic Party.			
		Ottawa and Toronto: New Democratic Publications:	1077		
	(11)	revised edition Pamphlet  Morton Dagmand 'Vest unions need New Damagrata'	1977		
	(11)	Morton, Desmond. 'Yes, unions need New Democrats'.	[1079 9]		
	(12)	Leaflet, 4 pp. [oversized – removed to /027(05)] Morton, Desmond. 'A century of experience proves	[1978 ?]		
	(12)	Labour and the NDP need each other'. Leaflet, 4 pp.	[1979?]		
	(13)	Morton, Desmond. The New Democratic Party: your	[17/7:]		
	(13)	guide. Toronto Pamphlet	1980		
	(14)	Morton, Desmond. <i>The New Democratic Party: your</i>	1700		
	(17)	guide. Typescript of pamphlet, 14 October, 1990	1990		
		Sware. Typosotipi of panipinot, 11 October, 1770	1770		

### **Appendix 3: Political activities (continued)**

/Box (file) B1999-0023		Description	Date(s)
/023	(15)	'The NDP and the economic crisis of Canada'. A series of papers, policy statements and pamphlets, most written by DPM (includes drafts) [see also oversized /027(06)]	1982-1983
		mpaigns and by- cal, by election.	
	(16)	Federal election, 1965. Speeches and press releases by Tommy Douglas. Some of these are drafts and are	
	(17)	Annotated (DPM served as a speech writer) Federal by-election, Sudbury constituency, 1967.	1965
	(18)	NDP campaign literature Federal election, 1968. NDP campaign literature	1967
	` /	[see also oversized material in /027(07)] Federal by-election, 1969 – Nanaimo-Cowichan-The	1968
	(19)	Islands constituency (Tommy Douglas, NDP candidate).	1060
	(20)	Campaign literature Federal election, 1972. NDP flyers, brochures and	1969
		Pamphlets [posters, leaflets and newsletters (oversized) to /027(08) and (09)]	1972
	(21)	Federal election, 1972. Lakeshore constituency (Terry Grier, NDP candidate). [photos removed to /001P(02);	
	(22)	newsletters and flyers (ovesized) to /027(10)] Federal election, 1972. Peel South constituency (David	1972
		Busby, NDP candidate). Campaign literature [oversized leaflets and newsletters to /027(10)]	1972
	(23)	Federal election, 1972. Other parties campaign literature [oversized leaflets and newsletters to /027(11)]	1972
	(24)	Federal election, 1974. NDP campaign literature [oversize material to /027(12)]	d
	(25)	Federal election, 1974. Lakeshore constituency (Terry Grier, NDP candidate). [photos removed to /001P(03)]	1974
	(26)	Federal election, 1974. Other parties campaign literature [oversized newsletters to /027(12)]	1974
/024	(01)	Federal by-election, 1976. Ottawa-Carleton constituency	277.
7021	(01)	(Stephen Langdon)	1976
	(02) (03)	NDP leadership campaign, 1977 (Ed Broadbent) Federal by-election, 1978. Broadview-Greenwood	1977
	()	constituency (Bob Rae) [oversized flyers to /027(13)]	1978

#### **Appendix 3: Political activities (continued)**

/Box (file) B1999-0023 /024	Description	Date(s)
(04)	Federal election, 1978 (anticipated). Mississauga North	
	constituency (Des Morton selected as NDP candidate)	1978-1979
(05)	Federal election, 1979 [oversized material to /027(14)]	1979
(06)	Federal election, 1979. Mississauga North constituency	
	(John McGuigan) [photo removed to /001P(04)]	1979
(07)	Federal election, 1980. NDP campaign literature	
, ,	[oversized leaflets to /027(15)]	1980
(08)	Federal election, 1980. Mississauga North constituency	
	(George Ross). [photos removed to /001P(05)]; [oversized	
	leaflets to /027(16)]	1980
(09)	Federal election, 1984. NDP campaign literature	
` ,	[oversized leaflets to /027(17]	1984
(10)	Federal election, 1984. Mississauga North constituency	
` '	(Bill Patrick). [photos removed to /001(06)]	1984
(11)	Federal election, 1984. Radio scripts for 'Election Talk'	
( -)	by Des Morton on CFRB	1984

This section relates to the New Democratic Party of Ontario. The first few folders document Dr. Morton's official activities in the mid-1960s and in 1970. These are followed by his writings for the party, including pamphlets, articles, and policy papers which he wrote and newsletters in which he had a hand; then by files on Ontario provincial elections (arranged chronologically).

	(12)	New Democratic Party of Ontario. Assistant Provincial Secretary. Brief to the Royal Commission on Bilingualism and Biculturalism New Democratic Party of Ontario. Policy Review Committee	rief to the Royal Commission on Bilingualism alism 1964		
	(13)	Position papers $-NDP/66$ .	1966		
	(14)	New Democratic Party of Ontario. Policy Review Committee (D. Morton, chair). Minutes, reports and			
	(15)	circular letters	1970		
	(15) –	(16) New Democratic Party of Ontario. Policy Review Committee (D. Morton, chair). <i>Policy explorations</i> 1970			
/025	(01)	Morton, Desmond. <i>Crisis in car insurance</i> , 1965. Press coverage of pamphlet	1965		
	(02)	Freeman, Ted and Desmond Morton. <i>Indians – do we care?</i> , 1966. Press coverage of pamphlet	1966		

### **Appendix 3: Political activities (continued)**

/Box (file) B1999-0023 /025	Description	Date(s)
(03)	Silcox, Peter and Desmond Morton. <i>Agenda for our cities</i> . Toronto: New Democratic Party of Ontario, 1966 Pamphlet	1966
(04)	Morton, Desmond. "Ontario '66", <i>The New Democrat</i> (special convention issue), 21-22	1966
(05)	Morton, Desmond. <i>Socialism Canada seventies</i> .  Toronto: New Democratic Party of Ontario, 1969.  Pamphlet, with press coverage	1969-1970
(06)	Morton, Desmond. <i>Meetings and rules of order</i> .  Toronto: New Democratic Party of Ontario.  Document Two (pamphlet). Revised by Gordon Vichert	1973
(07)	Morton, Desmond. <i>The story of the New Democratic Party</i> . Toronto: New Democratic Party of Ontario.	
(08)	Pamphlet Morton, Desmond. NDP: A guide to the New Democratic Party. Regina: Saskatchewan NDP (originally published	[1974?] 1976
(09)	by NDP of Ontario): 1976 (revised ed.) Morton, Desmond. <i>Labour and the NDP need each other</i> . Don Mills, ON: Ontario Federation of Labour pamphlet	[1982?]
(10)	Morton, Desmond. 'Opinion: The meaning of social Democracy in the 90s', <i>The New Ontario Democrat</i> (September, 1992), 19	[1702.]
(11)	New Democratic Party of Ontario. 'Every member canvass (fall, 1964). Handbook, newsletter	s' 1964
(12)	New Democratic Party of Ontario. 'We are building' (contact canvass). Handbook, newsletter	1964-1965
(13)	New Democratic Party of Ontario. <i>Election flash</i> (newsletter for the 1965 federal election)	1965
(14)	New Democratic Party of Ontario. <i>A firm foundation</i> [newsletter]	1965-1966
(15)	Morton, Desmond. 'For a great and beautiful city' – NDP draft programme discussion guide for Metropolitan Toronto	0.
(16)	April, 1966 New Democratic Party of Ontario. 'Go, tell it on the	1966
(17)	Media: A manual for publicity secretaries'.  Ontario provincial election, 1963. Mockup for leaflet	[196-] 1963
(18)	Ontario provincial by-election, 1965. Bracondale constituency (John Farina). Campaign material	1965
(19)	Ontario provincial election, 1967. Campaign material [oversized material removed to /027(18)]	1967

#### **Appendix 3: Political activities (continued)**

/Box (file)		Description	Date(s)	
B1999-0023				
/025	(20)	Ontario provincial election, 1971. Campaign material		
	` /	[oversized material removed to /027(18)]	1971	
	(21)	Ontario provincial by-election, 1973. St. George		
		Constituency (Ellen Adams). Campaign material	1973	
	(22)	Ontario provincial election, 1975. Campaign material		
		[oversized items moved to /027(19)]	1975	
	(23)	Ontario provincial election, 1975. Mississauga North		
		Constituency (David Busby). Campaign material (Des		
		Morton was campaign chairman) [photos removed to		
		/001P(07)]	1975	
	(24)	Ontario provincial election, 1977. Campaign material	1977	
	(25)	Ontario provincial election, 1977. Mississauga North		
	( <b>a</b> = 5)	constituency (David Busby): advertising	1977	
	(26)	Ontario provincial election, 1977. Mississauga North		
		constituency (David Busby): leaflets [photos removed to		
	(07)	/001P(08); oversized material removed to /027(20)] 1977		
	(27)	Ontario provincial election, 1977. Mississauga North	1077	
		constituency (David Busby): press releases	1977	
/026	(01)	Ontario provincial election, 1981. NDP campaign		
	` /	literature [photo removed to /001P(09)]	1981	
	(02)	Ontario provincial election, 1981. Mississauga North		
		constituency (Sylvia Weylie). Campaign material		
		[oversized material removed to /027(21); photos removed		
		to /001P(10)]	1981	
	(03)	Ontario provincial election, 1985. Campaign material	1985	
	(04)	Ontario provincial election, 1985. Mississauga North		
		constituency (Sylvia Weylie). Campaign material	1984-1985	
	The re	emaining files in this series relate to local elections, especiall	v the political	
arena in the Region of Peel and Mississauga where Dr. Morton lived and taught				
	9-0023	M		
/026	(05)	Morton, Desmond. "How to campaign for local elections"		
	(00)	Manuscript, with covering correspondence	1990-1991	
	(06)	Morton, Desmond. Political writings about Mississauga	1072 1001	

(with a few by David Busby), in the Mississauga Times

Municipal elections, Mississauga, 1976 (Martin Dobkin,

mayoralty candidate). Drafts of leaflet, press releases

[photo removed to /001P(11)]

(07)

1973-1981

1976

### Appendix 3: Political activities (continued)

/Box (file) B1999-0023 /026	Description	Date(s)
(08)	Municipal elections, Mississauga, 1978 (Hazel McCallion,	
	mayoralty candidate). Designs for campaign material, press releases; flyers and brochures [posters – see /027(22)]	1.
	photo removed to /001P(12)]	1978
(09)	Municipal elections, Mississauga, 1980. Committee to	
	Re-elect Hazel McCallion. Minutes of meetings; designs	
	for campaign material.	1980
(10)	Municipal elections, Mississauga, 1982. Committee to	
	Re-elect Hazel McCallion. Minutes of meetings; designs for	
(1.1)	campaign material; leaflets, press coverage	1982
(11)	Municipal elections, Mississauga, 1985. Committee to	
	Re-elect Hazel McCallion. Minutes of meetings; designs for	
(10)	campaign material; leaflets [photos removed to 001P(13)]	1985
(12)	Mississauga. Programmes for social events hosted by	10060 1002
(12)	Mayor McCallion	1986?, 1993
(13) Municipal elections, Toronto, 1972 (Karl Jaffray camp		).
	Correspondence, memos, campaign literature	1072
	[photos removed to 001P(14)]	1972

### Appendix 4: Manuscripts and publications

/Box (file)		Description	Date(s)	
<b>General</b> B1999-0023				
/032	(01) (02)	Publishing (general). Correspondence Publishing (general). Correspondence	1970-1979 1982-1994	
	(02) $(03)$	Publishing (general). Correspondence with James Braque	1902-1994	
	(04)	Publishing – correspondence with agents	1989-1993	
	(05)	Correspondence re academic articles	1969-1994	
	(06)	Public Lending Right Commission. Correspondence	1987-1994	
	(07)	Correspondence re articles for magazine	1987-1994	
	(08)	Correspondence with and re articles for Defence	1,0,1,,.	
		Associations National Network News.	1990-1994	
	0-0010			
/002	(11)	Correspondence with and re articles for Defence		
D1000	0000	Associations National Network News.	1995	
/032	9-0023 (09)	Correspondence re articles for <i>United Church Observer</i>	1982-1990	
/032	(09)	Correspondence te articles foi Ontied Church Observer	1982-1990	
/033	(01)	Correspondence with and entries for American Annual/		
		Encyclopedia Yearbook, 1974, 1980-1992	1974-1992	
	(02)	Correspondence with and entries for American Annual/		
		Encyclopedia Yearbook and Academic American		
		Encyclopedia	1992-1994	
	(03)	Correspondence with and entries for New Book of		
		Knowledge Annual	1983-1984	
	(04)	Correspondence with Grolier Limited re royalties for	100= 1004	
	(0.5)	work discussed in files (01) – (03) above	1987-1993	
	(05)	Correspondence with and entries for the <i>New Canadian</i>	1002 1002	
	(06)	Encyclopedia	1982-1993	
	(06) (07)	Correspondence with and entries for other encyclopedias Articles for and letters to newspapers. Correspondence re	1985-1994	
	(07)	and drafts, primarily for the <i>Ottawa Citizen</i> and the		
		Toronto Star	1971-1994	
B1999	9-0023	Toronto Star	17/1 1771	
/033	(08)	Articles and columns by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto</i>		
, , , ,	(00)	Star [also oversized – removed to /027(32)]	1971-1973	
	(09)	Articles and columns by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto</i>		
	` ,	Star	1974-1976	
	(10)	Articles by Desmond Morton in the Toronto Star [also		
		oversized – removed to /027(32)]	1977-1979	
	(11)	Articles and columns by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto</i>		
		Star	1980-1981	

Appendix 4: Manuscripts and publ Box (file) Description General		Description	Date(s)
/033	(12)	Articles and columns by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto</i> Star	1982-1983
/034	(01)	Articles by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto Star</i> [also oversized – removed to /027(32)]	1984-1986
	(02)	Articles and columns by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto Star</i>	1987-1988
	(03)	Articles and columns by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto</i> Star	1989-1990
	(04)	Articles and columns by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto</i>	
	(05)	Star Articles and columns by Desmond Morton in the <i>Toronto</i> Star, to 24 April, 1994	1991-1992 1993-1994
	(06)	Articles by Desmond Morton in the <i>Ottawa Citizen</i> [also oversized – removed to /027(32)]	1989-1994
	(07)	Articles by Desmond Morton in the Winnipeg Free Press	1989
	(08) (09)	Letters by to the editor, <i>Globe and Mail</i> Articles for and letters to <i>Medium II</i> and <i>The Medium</i>	1971-1987
	(10)	(Erindale College)	1987-1993
	(10)	Articles for and letters to the <i>Varsity</i> (University of Toronto)	1986-1994
		- (12) Political and academic manuscripts, 1968-1969 1968-	
	(13)	Political and academic manuscripts, 1970 (1)	1970
/035		- (03) Political and academic manuscripts, 1970 (2) – (4)	1970
		- (05) Political and academic manuscripts, 1971 (1) & (2)	1971
	(06)	Political and academic manuscripts, 1972 (1)	1972
/036	(01) -	- (02) Political and academic manuscripts, 1972 (2) & (3)	1972
	(03) –	- (06) Political and academic manuscripts, 1973 (1) – (4)	1973
/037	(01) (02)	Book proposals and outlines (various) Proposal for a book on Quebec and separation.	[197-]-1994
	(02)	Correspondence, outline  Proposal for a book on the South African Wor	1973
	(03)	Proposal for a book on the South African War. Correspondence, outline	1975
	(04)	Proposal for book, 'The Honourable Mr. Minister: the career of Sir Sam Hughes'. Correspondence, outline.	1975

Box (Schol		Description d professional work – articles	Date(s)
B1999 '037		es listed below that are located in 'Political and academic mated in square brackets after the entry by the appropriate box er.	-
	(05)	1969. "French Canada and the Canadian Militia, 1868-1914 <i>Histoire sociale/Social history</i> , III (June 1969) 32-50. Correspondence [offprint in box 034(12)] 1969	4",
	(06)	1969. "The Effectiveness of Political Campaigning: The New Democratic Party in the 1967 Ontario Election  Journal of Canadian Studies, IV, 3 (August 1969) 21-33	
	(07)	Correspondence, offprint 1970. "Sir Wilfrid Laurier and the Use of Canadian Troops for Overseas Service", <i>Queen's Quarterly</i> , LXXVII, 1 (Spring 1970) 1-7. Correspondence	1969
	(08)	Correspondence [offprint in box 034(12)] 1969-1970. (with J.M. Hitsman), "Canada's First Military Attaché", <i>Military Affairs</i> , XXXIV, 3 (October 1970)	1970 1969-1970
	(09)	82-4. Correspondence [TS in box 034(12)] 1970. "Des Canadiens errants: French Canadian troops in the North-West Campaign of 1885", Journal of Canadian Studies, V, 3, (August 1970) 28-39. Correspondence [TS and offprint in box 035(01)] 1970	1909-1970
	(10)	1970. "Aid to the Civil Power: The Canadian Militia in support of social order, 1867-1914", <i>Canadian Historical Review</i> , LII, 4 (December 1970) 407-425. Correspondence [TS and offprint in	10.00 1074
	(11)	box 035(01)] 1972. "The supreme penalty: Canadian deaths by firing squad in the First World War", <i>Queen's Quarterly</i> , LXXXIX, 3 (Autumn 1972) 345-352. Correspondence [TS and offprint in box 036(02)]	1969-1974 1972
	(12)	1974. "The short unhappy life of the 41st Battalion, C.E.F. <i>ibid.</i> , LXXXI, 1 (Spring 1974) 70-79. Correspondence,	,
	(13)	offprint [TS in box 036(05)] 1974. "Sir William Otter and internment operations in Canada During the First World War", <i>Canadian Historical Review</i> , LV, 1 (March 1974) 32-58. Offprint [TS (February, 1973) in box 036(05)]	1972-1974 1974
		[15 (1 column), 17/3) III con 030(03)]	1/11

/Box	(file)	Description	Date(s)
	Schol	arly and professional work – articles	
B199	9-0023		
/037	(14)	1975. "Surviving the crash: Canadian universities in the era of disillusionment", <i>The Canadian Journal of Higher Education</i> , V, 2 (1975) 1-7. Correspondence,	
		offprint	1975
	(15)	1977. "Polling the soldier vote: The overseas campaign in the 1917 general election", <i>Journal of Canadian Studi</i> XII, 2 (1977) 27-37. Correspondence, offprint	es, 1975-1977
	(16)	1977. "Cavalry or Police: Keeping the pace on adjacent frontiers, 1870-1900", <i>Journal of Canadian Studies</i> , XII, 2 (1977) 27-37. Reprinted in William M. Baker (ed	
		The Mounted Police and Prairie Society, 1873-1919 (Re Plains Research Centre (1998), 3-16. Offprint 1977	
	(17) –	- (19) 1977. "Taking on the Grand Trunk: The locomotive engineers' strike of 1876-1877", <i>Labour/Le Travailleur</i> , II (1977) 10-31. Correspondence, outline, typescript,	
		offprint	1977
	(20)	1979. (with R.C. Brown), "The embarrassing apotheosis of a 'Great Canadian': Sir Arthur Currie's personal crisis in 1917", <i>Canadian Historical Review</i> , LX, 1	
	,	(March 1979) 41-63. Offprint	1979
	(21)	1979. "Junior but sovereign allies: The transformation of the Canadian Expeditionary Force, 1914-1918", <i>Journal</i> of Imperial and Commonwealth History, VIII, 1 (October 1979) 56-67, and in B.D. Hunt and R.G. Haycock, Canada's Defences: Perspectives on Policy in the Twentieth Century (Toronto: Copp Clark Pitman,	
		1993) 31-43. Correspondence, offprint	1979
	(22)	1980. "Kicking and complaining: Demobilization riots in the Canadian Expeditionary Force, 1918-1919", <i>Canadian Historical Review</i> , LXI, 3 (September1980)	
		334-360. Correspondence, offprint	1979-1986
	(23) –	- (24) 1981. "The <i>Globe</i> and the labour question: Ontario liberalism in the `Great Upheaval' May, 1886", <i>Ontario History</i> , LXXII, 1 (March 1981) 19-39.	
		Research file, correspondence, offprint	1979-1981

Box (file)	Description	Date(s)
	olarly and professional work – articles	
B1999-002	3	
037		
(25) 1	981. "'Noblest and Best': Retraining Canada's war	
	disabled, 1915-1923", Journal of Canadian Studies, XVI	•
	3-4 (Autumn-Winter, 1981-2) 75-85. Republished in	
	Raymond B. Blake and Jeff Keshen (eds.) Social	
	Welfare Policy in Canada: Selected Readings. Toronto:	
	11, , 1	1980-1981
(26		
	Veterans and the campaign for reestablishment",	
	Canadian Historical Review, LXIV, 2 (June 1983)	
	147-167. Correspondence, offprint	1982-1983
(27		
	and Canada's Board of Pension Commissioners, 1916-19	33", Canadian
	Historical Review, LXVIII, 2 (June 1987)	
(0.0	199-224. Correspondence, offprint	1986-1987
(28	,	
	perspectives on Canadian defence, 1867-1987",	
	International Journal, XLII (Autumn 1987) 627-644.	1001100
(20	Correspondence	1986-1987
(29	,	
	Sergeant François-Xavier Maheux"_Canadian Military	000
	History, I, 1-2 (Autumn, 1992), 79-89. Correspondence 1	.992
	Books and chapters/articles in books	
(30	) 1970. Ministers and Generals: Politics and the Canadian	
(5.5	Militia, 1868-1904 (Toronto: University of Toronto Press	S.
	1970), xiv, 258. Correspondence, reviews, royalties	1968-1980
(31	* · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
`	Granatstein and R.D. Cuff, (eds.) Society and War in	
	North America (Toronto: Thomas Nelson, 1971), 84-103	
	Correspondence	1970-1971
(32	•	
`	in South Africa, 1899-1900" in Michael Cross and	
	Robert Bothwell (eds.) Policy by Other Means: Essays	
	in Honour of C.P. Stacey (Toronto: Clarke-Irwin, 1972)	
	95-120. Correspondence [TS in box 036(02)]	1971-1973

/Box (	,	Description s and chapters/articles in books	Date(s)	
B1999-0023				
/037	(33)	1972. The Last War Drum: The North-West Campaign of 1885 (Toronto: A.M. Hakkert, Canadian War Museum, 1972), pp. xxii, 193. Correspondence, etc.	1968-1988	
	(34)	1972. "William Foster Coffin" and "Sir James Alexander Lindsay", <i>Dictionary of Canadian Biography</i> , X (1871-1880). (Toronto: University of Toronto Press, 1972), 180-182, 443-444. Correspondence	1969-1970	
/038	(01)	1972. The Last War Drum: The North-West Campaign of 1885 (Toronto: A.M. Hakkert, Canadian War Museum, 1972), pp. xxii, 193. Notices and reviews	1072 1075	
	(02)	[poster removed to box 027(xx)] 1972. (with R.H. Roy eds.) <i>Telegrams of the North-West Campaign of 1885</i> (Toronto: Champlain Society,	1972-1975	
	(03)	vol. XLVII, 1972), pp. cii, 431. Correspondence, etc. 1973. <i>Mayor Howland: The Citizens' Candidate</i> (Toronto: Hakkert, 1973), pp. viii, 120. Correspondence, research		
	(04)	notes, etc. 1973. <i>Mayor Howland: The Citizens' Candidate</i> (Toronto: Hakkert, 1973), pp. viii, 120. TS, October, 1973 1973	1973-1982	
	(05)	1973. <i>Mayor Howland: The Citizens' Candidate</i> (Toronto: Hakkert, 1973), pp. viii, 120. Reviews	1973-1976	
	(06)	1974. "Le Canada français et la milice canadienne (1868-1914) in Jean-Yves Gravel (ed.) <i>Le Canada Français et la guerre</i> (Montréal: Editions du Boréal-		
	(07)	Express, 1974), pp. 23-46. Correspondence 1974. <i>The Canadian General: Sir William Otter</i> (Toronto: Hakkert, The Canadian War Museum, 1974),	1973-1974	
	(08) –	pp. xx, 423. Correspondence, etc. (09) 1974. The Canadian General: Sir William Otter.	1969-1989	
10.20	(0.1)	Typescript, pp. 1-353. June, 1973	1973	
/039	(01)	1974. <i>The Canadian General: Sir William Otter</i> . Typescript, pp. 354 – end. June, 1953	1973	
	(02)	1974. The Canadian General: Sir William Otter. Reviews	1974	
	(03)	1974. Introduction to <i>The Queen vs. Louis Riel</i> . Correspondence, etc.	1973-1988	
	(05)	1974. Introduction to <i>The Queen vs. Louis Riel</i> . Reviews		

/Box (		Description s and chapters/articles in books	Date(s)
B1999		s und chapters, at trees in books	
/039	(06)	NDP: The Dream of Power (Toronto: Hakkert, 1974), pp. x., 181. Revised and published as NDP: Social Democracy in Canada (Toronto: Samuel, Stevens, 1978, pp. x, 229. Correspondence, etc.	, 1974-1982
	(07)	1976. "People and politics of Ontario: An Introduction" in Donald C. McDonald (ed.) <i>Government and Politics of Ontario</i> (Toronto: Macmillan, 1975, pp. 1-14; revisio (Scarborough: Van Nostrand Reinhold, 1980), pp. 1-16; 3 <sup>rd</sup> edition (Scarborough: Nelson Canada, 1985). Correspondence	on, 1975 – 1985
/039			
7037	(08)	1976. "The Militia lobby in Parliament: The military politicians and the Canadian Militia, 1867-1897" in Adrian Preston and Peter Dennis (eds.), <i>Swords and Covenants: Essays in Honour of the Centennial of the Royal Military College of Canada, 1876-1976</i> (London: Croom-Helm, 1976), pp. 74-88. Copy of	
		chapter	1976
	(09)	1978. NDP: Social Democracy in Power. Typescript, January, 1977	1977
	(10)	1980. <i>Rebellions in Canada</i> (Toronto: Grolier: 1979), pp. 96. Correspondence	1975-1978
	(11) (12)	<ul><li>1980. Rebellions in Canada. Typescript, July 1978 1978</li><li>1979. "History and nationality in Canada: Variations on an old theme: Presidential address to the Canadian Historical Association, 1979", Historical Papers, 1979</li></ul>	
	(13)	(Ottawa, 1980), pp. 1-10. Offprint 1980. "People and politics of Ontario: An Introduction" in Donald C. McDonald (ed.) <i>Government and Politics</i> of Ontario (Toronto: Macmillan, 1975, pp. 1-14; revisio (Scarborough: Van Nostrand Reinhold, 1980), pp. 1-16; 3 <sup>rd</sup> edition (Scarborough: Nelson Canada, 1985). Correspondence	1980 on, 1975

/Box	(file)	Description Books and chapters/articles in books	Date(s)
B199	9-0023	•	
/040	(01) -	- (02) 1980. (with Terry Copp) Working People: An Illustra History of Canadian Labour (Ottawa: Deneau & Greenl 1980), pp. xviii, 349. Revised and extended as Working People: An Illustrated History of the Canadian Labour	perg,
		ment (Ottawa, Deneau, 1984) pp. x, 357.	
		Correspondence, contract	1978-1984
	(03) -	- (06) 1980. (with Terry Copp) Working People: An Illustra	ted
	` ,	History of Canadian Labour. Typescript of chapters 1-2	
		notes, further readings, index	1980
	(07)	1980. (with Terry Copp) Working People: An Illustrated	
		History of Canadian Labour. Notices and reviews	1980-1982
	(08)	1980. "The Limits of loyalty: French-Canadian officers in the First World War:, in Edgar Denton III (ed.) <i>The</i>	
		Limits of Loyalty (Waterloo: Wilfrid Laurier University	1000
	(09)	Press, 1980), pp. 81-97. Offprint 1980. "People and politics of Ontario: An Introduction" in Donald C. McDonald (ed.) <i>Government and Politics</i> of Ontario (Scarborough: Van Nostrand Reinhold, 1980)	1980
		revision), pp. 1-16. Correspondence	1979-1980
/041	(01)	1981. Canada and War: A Political and Military History (Toronto: Butterworth, 1981) pp. viii, 228.	
		Correspondence, 1979-1984, 1987, 1990-1991	1979-1991
	(02) -	- (03) 1981. Canada and War: A Political and Military	
		History. Typescript, August, 1980	1980
	(04)	1981. <i>Canada and War: A Political and Military History</i> . Galley proofs	1981
	(05)	1981. Canada and War: A Political and Military History.	
	, ,	Notices and reviews, royalties	1980-1991
	(06)	1981. "The history of Canadian labour" in John Anderson	
		and Morley Gunderson (eds.) Union Management Relat	ions
		in Canada (Don Mills: Addison-Wesley, 1981), pp. 95-	·116.
		Correspondence	1980-1981

/Box		Description as and chapters/articles in books	Date(s)
B1999	9-0023	-	
		1982. "Exerting control: The development of Canadian authority over the Canadian Expeditionary Force, 1914-1919", in Timothy Travers and Christon B. Archer (eds.) <i>Men at War: Politics, Technology and Innovation in the Twentieth Century</i> (Chicago: Precedent Books, 1982).	
	(00)	1982), pp. 7-19. Correspondence	1979
	(08)	1982. <i>Labour in Canada</i> (Toronto: Grolier Limited, 1982), pp. 96. Correspondence	1981-1993
	(09)	1982. Labour in Canada. Typescript, August, 1981 1981	
/042	(01)	1982. Labour in Canada. Galley proofs	[198-]
	(02)	1982. A Peculiar Kind of Politics: Canada's Overseas Ministry in the First World War (Toronto: U of T Press,	
		1982), pp. x, 267. Correspondence	1981-1994
(03) –	(05)	1982. A Peculiar Kind of Politics: Canada's Overseas Ministry in the First World War. Copyedited typescript	1981
	(06)	1982. A Peculiar Kind of Politics: Canada's Overseas Ministry in the First World War. Reviews	1982-1984
	(07)	1982. "The Military Problems of an Unmilitary Power", in W.A.B. Douglas and D. Morton, <i>Canada as Military Power</i> , published in <i>Revue Internationale d'Histoire</i>	
		Militaire No. 61, 1982. Correspondence 1980-	1983
	(08)	1983. A Short History of Canada (Edmonton: Hurtig	
		Limited, 1983), pp. 295. Correspondence with	
		publisher, etc.	1981-1993
/043	, ,	- (02) 1983. A Short History of Canada. Typescript, August, 1982	1982
	(03)	1983. A Short History of Canada. Index, May 1983 1983	1004
	(04)	1983. A Short History of Canada. Reviews 1983-	1984
	(05)	1983. Years of Conflict, 1911-1921 (Toronto: Grolier Limited, 1983), pp. 112. Correspondence 1982-	1983
	(06)	1983. Years of Conflict, 1911-1921. Typescript, May,	1002
	(07)	1982	1982
	(07)	1983. <i>New France and War</i> . Toronto: Grolier Ltd., 1983, pp. 96. Correspondence	1982-1986
	(08)	1983. New France and War. Typescript, June, 1983 1983	
	(09)	1984. <i>Sieges of Quebec</i> (Toronto: Grolier Limited, 1984), pp. 96. Correspondence	1983-1986
	(10)	1984. Sieges of Quebec. Typescript, 1984	1984

<b>Appendix 4: Manuscripts and publications (continued)</b>			
/Box (1	file)	Description	Date(s)
	Books	s and chapters/articles in books	
B1999	-0023		
/044	(01)	1984. Working People: An Illustrated History of Canadian	1000 1000
		Labour. 2 <sup>nd</sup> edition. Correspondence	1983-1988
	(02)	1984. Working People: An Illustrated History of Canadian	
		Labour. 2 <sup>nd</sup> edition. Typescript of new introduction,	
		revisions to chapters 5, 28, 29 and further readings.	1002
	(0.0)	November, 1983	1983
	(03)	1984. (with J.L. Granatstein) Bloody Victory: Canadians	
		and the D-Day Campaign, 1944 (Toronto: Lester &	
		Orpen, Dennys, 1984; revised edition, Lester Publishing,	
	(0.1)	1994), pp. 240. Correspondence	1983-1987
	(04)	1984. (with J.L. Granatstein) Bloody Victory: Canadians	
		and the D-Day Campaign, 1944. Typescript: intro-	1000
		duction, chapters 3 and 4. July, 1983	1983
	(O =)	1994), pp. 240. Correspondence	1983-1987
	(05)	1984. (with J.L. Granatstein) Bloody Victory: Canadians	
		and the D-Day Campaign, 1944. Typescript, revised	1000
	(0.5)	and complete, July, 1983	1983
	(06)	1984. (with J.L. Granatstein) Bloody Victory: Canadians	1001 1007
	(O.=)	and the D-Day Campaign, 1944. Notices and reviews	1984-1985
	(07)	1985. A Military History of Canada (Edmonton: Hurtig	1001 1000
	(0.0)	Publishers, 1985), pp. 305. Correspondence	1984-1990
	(08)	1985. A Military History of Canada. Revised typescript,	1001
		September, 1984 (1), to p. 189	1984
/045	(01)	1985. A Military History of Canada. Revised typescript,	
		September, 1984 (2), pp. 190 - end	1984
	(02)	1985. A Military History of Canada. Notices, reviews	1985-1986
	(02a)	1985. "People and politics of Ontario: An introduction"	
		in Donald C. McDonald (ed.) Government and Politics	
		of Ontario. (Scarborough: Nelson Canada, 3 <sup>rd</sup> edition,	
		1985). Correspondence	1985

/Box	(file)	Description	Date(s)
	Book	s and chapters/articles in books	
B1999	9-0023		
/045	(03)	[198-]. What's Left in Canada [working title].	
		Correspondence re proposed book	1984-1986
/033	(05)	1985. "Armed Forces of Canada: Unification and	
		afterward" in The Canadian Encyclopedia (Edmonton:	
		Hurtig, 1985), pp. 93-95; "Otter, Sir William Dillon",	
		ibid., p. 1345; "World War I", ibid. pp. 1972-1975.	
		Correspondence	1982-1984
/045	(04)	1986. Album of the Great War (Toronto: Grolier Ltd.,	
		1986), pp. 48. Correspondence	1985-1992
	(05)	1986. Album of the Great War. Typescript, June, 1985	1985
	(06)	1986. The New Democrats, 1961-1986: The Politics of	
		Change (Toronto: Copp Clark Pitman, 1986)	
		pp. x, 253. Correspondence, etc. 1986-1987, 1994	1986-1994
	(07)	1986. The New Democrats, 1961-1986: The Politics of	
		Change. Typescript, April, 1986	1986
	(08)	1986. Foreword to Paul Bennett, <i>Years of Promise</i> .	
		Typescript, 12 February 1986	1986
	(09)	1987. "Canadian socialism: The Society of Friends",	
		in Paul W. Fox and Graham White (eds.), <i>Politics:</i>	
		Canada (Toronto: McGraw-Hill Ryerson, 1987),	
		pp. 383-6. Correspondence	1986
	(10) -	-(13) 1986. (and Glenn Wright), Winning the Second Battle	:
		Canadian Veterans and the Return to Civilian Life,	
		1915-1930 (Toronto, London and Buffalo: University	
		of Toronto Press, 1987), pp. xiv, 328.	
		Correspondence	1980-1986
/046	(01)	1987. (and Glenn Wright), Winning the Second Battle:	
		Canadian Veterans and the Return to Civilian Life,	
		1915-1930. Correspondence	1986-1990

/Box	` ,	Description ks and chapters/articles in books	Date(s)
/046		– (04) 1987. (and Glenn Wright), Winning the Second Battle.	•
	` /	Canadian Veterans and the Return to Civilian Life,	
		1915-1930. Copyedited typescript	[1987?]
	(05)	` "	
		Canadian Veterans and the Return to Civilian Life,	
	(0.0)	1915-1930. Bibliography, index	[1987?]
	(06)	`	
		Canadian Veterans and the Return to Civilian Life,	1006 1000
	(07)	1915-1930. Reviews and notices	1986-1989
	(07)	1987. "Strains of affluence (1945-1987)" in Craig Brown	
		(ed.) <i>The Illustrated History of Canada</i> (Toronto: Lester & Orpen, Dennys, 1987), 467-543 [2 <sup>nd</sup> edition (Lester	
		Publishing, 1991), 467-555; 3 <sup>rd</sup> edition (Lester Publishing)	nα
		1996), 467-562; 4 <sup>th</sup> edition (Key Porter Books, 2000),	15,
		467-570. (Also as "Crises d'abondance, 1945-1987", in	
		Paul-Andre Linteau (ed.) <i>Histoire général du Canada</i>	•
		(Montréal: Éditions du Boreal, 1987), 567-678].	
		Correspondence	1985-1986
		1	
/047	(01)	1987. "Strains of affluence (1945-1987)" in Craig Brown	
		(ed.) The Illustrated History of Canada	
		Correspondence	1987-1988
	(02)	1987. "Strains of affluence (1945-1987)" in Craig Brown	
		(ed.) The Illustrated History of Canada. Notices and	
		reviews	1987-1988
	(03)	` ´ ´	
	(0.4)	(ed.) The Illustrated History of Canada. Royalties	1988-1994
	(04)	1987. "Strains of affluence (1945-1987)" in Craig Brown	
		(ed.) The Illustrated History of Canada. Correspondence	
		re Avro Arrow project	1988-1989

/Box (	(file)	Description	Date(s)
		Books and chapters/articles in books	
B1999	9-0023		
/047	(05)	1987. "Crises d'abondance, 1945-1987", in Paul-André Linteau (ed.) <i>Histoire général du Canada</i> (Montreal, Éditions du Boréal, 1987), pp. 567-678. Correspondence	1988
/033	(05)	1988. "Armed Forces: Unification and after" in James Marsh (ed.), <i>The Canadian Encyclopedia</i> (Edmonton: Hurtig Publishers, 1988) I, 118-9; "Defence policy", <i>ibid.</i> , 580-1; "Otter, Sir William Dillon", <i>ibid.</i> , III, 1597. "Vokes, Christopher", <i>ibid.</i> , IV, p. 2267; "World War I"	,
		<i>ibid.</i> , pp. 2341-4. Correspondence	1985-1987
/047	(06)	1988. "Labour and industrial relations history in English -speaking Canada" in Gérard Hébert, Hem C. Jain and Noah M. Meltz, <i>The State of the Art in Industrial Relatio</i> (Kingston: Industrial Relations Centre, Queen's University and Toronto, Centre for Industrial Relations, University Toronto, 1988) pp. 241-260 (also translated as <i>Histoire a travail et des relations industrielles au Canada</i> (Montré École de relations industrielles, Université de Montréal, monographe 19, 1988) pp. 295-317. Correspondence 1989. "The history of the Canadian labour movement", chapter 7 in John C. Anderson, Morley Gunderson and Allen Ponak, (eds.) <i>Union-Management Relations in Canada</i> (Don Mills: Addison-Wesley, 2nd ed., 1989),	ity of du
	(06)	<ul><li>155-181. Correspondence</li><li>1989. Towards Tomorrow: Canada in a Changing World: History (Toronto, Harcourt Brace Jovanovich, 1988):</li></ul>	
	(07)	pp. viii, 232. Correspondence 1989. <i>Towards Tomorrow: Canada in a Changing World:</i> <i>History</i> Review submissions and publisher's response	1985-1994 1985-1986
	(08)	1989. Towards Tomorrow: Canada in a Changing World: History. Typescript, July-August, 1985	

/Box (		Description s and chapters/articles in books	Date(s)
B1999	-0023	•	
/047	(09)	1989. Towards Tomorrow: Canada in a Changing World: History. Review draft, 1986, to chapter 5	1986
/048	(01)	1989. Towards Tomorrow: Canada in a Changing World: History. Review draft, 1986, chapters 6-8	1986
	(02) –	- (04) 1989. (and J.L. Granatstein) <i>Marching to Armageddon Canadians and the Great War, 1914-1919</i> (Toronto: Lester & Orpen Dennys, 1989) pp. ix, 288; and <i>A Nation Forged in Fire: Canadians and the Second World War, 1939-1945</i> (Toronto: Lester & Orpen Dennys, 1989), pp. vii, 289. Correspondence, 1982-1990, 1994 1982-1	ı: n
	(05)	1989. (and J.L. Granatstein) Marching to Armageddon: Canadians and the Great War, 1914-1919 and A Nation Forged in Fire: Canadians and the Second World War, 1939-1945. Notices and reviews	1989-1990
	(06)	1989. (and J.L. Granatstein) Marching to Armageddon: Canadians and the Great War, 1914-1919 and A Nation Forged in Fire: Canadians and the Second World War,	
	(07)	<ul><li>1939-1945. Royalties</li><li>1990. "Sir Frederick Dobson Middleton", <i>Dictionary of Canadian Biography</i>, vol. XII (Toronto: University of</li></ul>	1989-1994
	(08)	Toronto Press, 1990), pp. 733-736. Correspondence 1990. "The Canadian military experience in the First World War, 1914-18" in R.J.Q. Adams, (ed.), 1914-18: Essays on the Military, Political and Social History of the First World War (College Station: Texas	1988-1989
	(09)	A & M University, 1990), pp. 79-98. Correspondence 1990. "Sic permanet: Ontario people and their politics" in Graham White (ed.), <i>The Government and Politics of Ontario</i> (Toronto: University of Toronto Press, 1990, 5th edition), pp. 3-18. Correspondence	1988-1990 1988-1990

/Box		Description as and chapters/articles in books	Date(s)
B1999	9-0023	-	
/048		1990. (and Ken Bell) <i>Royal Canadian Military Institute:</i> 100 Years: 1890-1990 (Toronto: Royal Canadian Military Institute, 1990), pp. 208. Correspondence	ary 1987-1992
	(11)	1990. (and Ken Bell) <i>Royal Canadian Military Institute:</i> 100 Years: 1890-1990. Typescript (with William Rawling), August, 1988	1988
		Rawling), August, 1900	1900
/049	(01)	1990. Working People: An Illustrated History of the Canadian Labour Movement (Toronto: Summerhill Press, 3rd edition revised and updated, 1990),	
		pp. xii, 377.) Correspondence	1989-1993
	(02)	1990. The Military History of Canada (Edmonton: Hurtig	
		Publishers, 1990 2nd ed.) xiv, 311. Correspondence	1989-1990
	(03)	1991. "Should elections be fair or just free?" in David	
		Schneiderman, ed. Freedom of Expression and the Char	ter (Edmonton:
		University of Alberta: Centre for Constitutional	
		Studies, 1991), pp. 460-466. Correspondence, draft	1990
	(04)	1991. "The Canadian security dimension" in Alex Morrison	
		(ed.) Divided We Fall: The National Security Implication	ns
		of Canadian Constitutional Issues (Toronto: Canadian	
		Institute of Strategic Studies, 1991), pp. 69-76.	
		Correspondence	1990
	(05)	1991. "Strains of affluence (1945-1987)" in Craig Brown	
		(ed.) The Illustrated History of Canada (Toronto: Lester	
		Publishing. 2 <sup>nd</sup> ed., 1991), 467-555. Correspondence	1991-1993
	(06)	1991. Canadian History: A Study Guide for Students of	
		Canada. Drafts, with covering correspondence	1991
(0	7) 19	91. "World War I" in Allegiance: The Ontario Story.	
		Toronto: Heirloom Publishing, 1991. Correspondence,	
		draft	1990-1991
	(08)	1992. Confederation: A Short History of Canada's	
		Constitution (Toronto: Umbrella Press, 1992), pp. iii, 52	
		Correspondence with the publisher	1991-1993
	(09)	<i>y</i>	
		Constitution. Drafts, August, September, 1991	1991

#### **Appendix 4: Manuscripts and publications (continued)**

/Box (	file)	Description	Date(s)
	Book	ks and chapters/articles in books	
B1999			
/049		<ul> <li>1992. A Military History of Canada: From Champlain to the Gulf War (Toronto: McClelland &amp; Stewart, 1992 3rd ed.) pp. xiv, 317. Correspondence and royalties</li> <li>1992. "Reflections on the image of Louis Riel a century afte in Ramon Hathorn and Patrick Holland (eds.) Images of</li> </ul>	1990-1994 r"
	(12)	Louis Riel in Canadian Culture (Lewiston/Queenston/ Lampeter: Edwin Mellen Press, 1992), 47-62. Correspondence  – (13) 1992. Une Histoire Militaire du Canada, 1608-1991 (Québec: Les éditions du Septentrion, 1992), pp. 415. Typescript	1992 [198-?]
		Typescript	[170-1]
/050	(01)	1992. "Military medicine and state medicine: Historical notes on the Canadian Army Medical Corps in the First World War, 1914-1919" in C. David Naylor (ed.) Canadian Health Care and the State: A Century of Evolu (Montreal & Kingston: McGill-Queen's University Press	
	(02)	1992), pp. 38-66. Correspondence; draft, Feb. 1989 1992. "Reflections on the breakup of Canada: Conflict and self-determination", in Stanley Hartt, ed., <i>Tangled Web: Legal Aspects of Deconfederation</i> (Toronto, C.D. Howe Institute, 1992), pp. 86-98. Correspondence; drafts	, 1987-1992
		(July and November, 1991), page proofs	1991-1992
	(03)	1992. Silent Battle: Canadian Prisoners of War in Germany 1914-1919 (Toronto, Lester Publishing, 1992), pp. xii, 2 Correspondence	ν,
	(04)	– (05) 1992. Silent Battle: Canadian Prisoners of War in	
		Germany, 1914-1919. Copyedited typescript 1992. Silent Battle: Canadian Prisoners of War in	1992
		Germany, 1914-1919. Final comments on typeset copy	1992
	(07)	1992. Silent Battle: Canadian Prisoners of War in Germany, 1914-1919. Reviews with covering correspondence [photos removed from A. F. Fowell's	000
	(0.0)	letter of 18 February, 1993 to /001P(15)] 1992-1	
	(08)	1992. L'histoire du Canada: Guides pédagogiques des étude Canadiennes /Canadian History: Canadian Studies Resource Guides (Ottawa, Secretary of State, 1992),	?S
		pp. 34. Correspondence with publisher May 1992.	1991-1992 1992

/Box		Date(s)
D1000	Books and chapters/articles in books	
	0-0023 (09) 1992. Wheels: The Car in Canadian History. (Toronto: Umbrella Press, 1992). Draft (August 1987); correspondence, 1992-1994	1987-1994
	(10) 1993. When Your Number's Up: The Canadian Soldier in the First World War (Toronto, Random House, 1993) pp. xiii, 354. Correspondence with publishers	1988-1994
/051	(01) – (02) 1993. When Your Number's Up: The Canadian Soldier in the First World War. Correspondence with researche and informants; reviews etc.	ers 1988-1995
	<ul> <li>(03) 1993. When Your Number's Up: The Canadian Soldier in the First World War. Typescript, May 1992.</li> <li>Edited version – different format but same content (chapters only) as 1<sup>st</sup> editorial version (not kept) of</li> </ul>	1700-1773
	(04) 1993. When Your Number's Up: The Canadian Soldier in the First World War. Typescript, 2 <sup>nd</sup> editorial version (to chapter 5), January 1993	1993
	(05) – (06) 1993. When Your Number's Up: The Canadian Soldier in the First World War. Typescript, 2 <sup>nd</sup> editorial version (to chapters 6-end), January 1993 1993	
	(07) 1993. "Divided loyalties, divided country?" in William Kaplan (ed.) <i>Belonging: The Meaning and Future of Canadian Citizenship</i> (Kingston, McGill-Queen's University Press, 1993), pp. 50-63. Correspondence, reviews	1993-1994
/052	(01) 1994. (with J.L. Granatstein) <i>Bloody Victory: Canadians</i> and the <i>D-Day Campaign</i> , 1944 (Toronto: Lester Publishing, 1994, rev. ed.). pp. 240. Correspondence	1992-1994
	(02) 1994. <i>The Short History of Canada</i> (Toronto: McClelland & Stewart, 1994 - rev. ed.) pp. 352. Correspondence with publisher	1994
	(03) 1994. <i>The Short History of Canada</i> . Copyedited typescript	1994
	(04) 1995. "Canadian socialism: Society of Friends": in Paul W. Fox and Graham White (eds.), <i>Politics: Canada</i> (8th edition, Toronto, McGraw-Hill Inc., 8 <sup>th</sup> edition, March 1995) pp. 45-48. Correspondence 1990-1	994

/Box (	file)	Description	Date(s)
	Bool	ks and chapters/articles in books	
B1999			
/052	(05)	1995. "No more disagreeable or onerous duty:	
		Canadians and military aid of the civil power, past,	
		present and future" in David DeWitt and David	
		Leighton Brown, Canada's International Security Policy	, (Scarborough:
		Prentice Hall, 1995, pp. 129-145.	
		Typescript, June, 1992; correspondence	1992-1994
	(06)	1995. (with J.L. Granatstein) Victory 1945: Canadians from	ļ.
		War to Peace (Toronto: Phyllis Bruce Books, Harper	
		Collins, April 1995). pp. 256. Correspondence with	
		publisher	1992-1994
	(07)	1995. (with J.L. Granatstein) Victory 1945: Canadians from	l.
		War to Peace. Correspondence with and original docum	nents
		[1945; photo of Bill Alexander and Doug Grose (Karach	
		March, 1945) removed from letter of 23 July, 1945 (RCA	<b>4</b> F)
		to /001P(16)] received from veterans, 1992-1994 1945-1	1994
	(08)	1995. (with J.L. Granatstein) Victory 1945: Canadians from	
		War to Peace. Correspondence with Jack Granatstein,	
		including drafts of chapters 1992-1	1994
	(09)	1995. Chapter 6: "The History of the Canadian labour	
		movement" in Morley Gunderson and Allen Ponak, Unio	on-Management
		Relations in Canada (Don Mills, Addison-	
		Wesley, 1995, 3rd ed. pp. 131-158). Correspondence	1993-1994
	(10)	1995. The United Nations: Its History and the Canadians	
		who Shaped It (Toronto, Kids Can Press Ltd., 1995) pp.	64.
		espondence with publisher	1993-1994
	(11)	1995. The United Nations: Its history and the Canadians	
		who shaped it. Typescript $-1^{st}$ editorial version,	
		June, 1993	1993
	(12)	1996. Shaping a Nation: A History of Canada's	
		constitution (Toronto: Umbrella Press, 1996) pp. 96.	
		Correspondence with publisher, partial drafts	1993-1994
	(13)	1996. Shaping a Nation: A History of Canada's	
		constitution. Typescript, August, 1993	1993
	(14)	1 /	
		and "Walker Powell", Dictionary of Canadian	
		Biography, XIV (1911-1920) 1998: 658-659, 756-757,	
		846-847. Research material, correspondence, drafts	1991-1993

/Box (f	file)	Description	Date(s)
	Book	s and chapters/articles in books	
B1999			
/052	` '	1998. "Archibald Glenlyon Campbell", <i>Dictionary of Canadian Biography</i> , XIV (1911-1920) 1998: 172-173 Research material, correspondence, drafts 1991-1998. "William Alexander", <i>Dictionary of Canadian Biography</i> , XIV (1911-1920) 1998: 13-14. Correspondence, drafts	994 1994
	Non-	referred publications	
	This	section includes some manuscripts that have not been published	ed.
/034	(12)	1969. "Democracy and the mass media", <i>Canadian Forum</i> , July 1969, 82-4. Typescript, 16 May, 1969	1969
/053	(01)	1971. "Perspectives on the NDP in the seventies" in Laurier La Pierre, J.T. McLeod, Charles Taylor and Walter Young (eds.) <i>Essays on the Left: Essays in Honour of T.C. Douglas</i> (Toronto: McClelland & Stewar 1971), 251-263. Correspondence; typescript, December	t,
	(02)	1970 [in /035(01)].  1972. "The NDP and Quebec: A sad tale of unrequited love", <i>Saturday Night</i> LXXXVII, 6, June, 1972, 17-20. Correspondence; typescript, April 1972 [in /035(06)]; copy of article	1970-1971 1972
/035	(04)	1973. "Independence: It won't be easy", in H.V. Nelles and Abraham Rotstein, <i>Nationalism or Local Control</i> (Toronto: New Press, 1973), 13-30. Typescript	1971
/053	(03)	1973. "Administrative aspects of the Canadian campaign in the North-West in 1885", <i>Canadian Defence Quarterly</i> , III, 1, summer, 1973, pp. 45-56. Correspondence, offprint; typescript, January 1973 [in /036(04)]	1972-1973
/036	(01)	1972-1973 1974. "Aid to the civil power: The Stratford strike of 1933" in Irving Abella (ed.) <i>On Strike: Six Key Labour Struggles in Canada, 1919-1949</i> (Toronto: James Lewis and Samuel, 1974), 79-91. Typescript, July, 1971	1971
/053	(04)	1974. "Industrial democracy: Catchphrase or wave of the future?" <i>Civil Service Review</i> , XLVII, 2, June 1974. Correspondence	1974-1975
		Correspondence	1717-1713

/Box	(file)	Description	Date(s)
	Non	-referred publications	
B1999	9-0023		
/053	(05)	1975. 'History of Canada's working people'. Reprinted	
	` /	from the <i>Miner's Voice</i> . Correspondence, offprints	1975
	(06)		'.
	` /	in James Lorimer and Evelyn Ross (eds.) The Second Ci	
		Book (Toronto: James Lorimer, 1977), pp. 114-121.	
		Draft, 12 December, 1975	1975
	(07)	1977. "Politics, international unions and Canadian labour",	
	()	Proceedings of the 29th Annual Meeting of the Industria	1
		Relations Research Association (Madison, Wis.: University	
		of Wisconsin Press, 1977), 100-106. Offprint	1977
	(08)	1977. "Labour's new political direction: Is the CLC	-,,,
	( , ,	serious?", Canadian Labour Forum, October, 1977.	
		Copy of article	1977
	(09)	1980. "Mayor Howland: The man who made Toronto	-,,,
	(0)	made Toronto good", <i>The York Pioneer</i> , Fall, 1980.	
		Copy of article	1980
	(10)	1982. "Military amateurism or professionalism: The case	-, -,
	(10)	of Sir William Otter", <i>The Quarterly of Canadian Studie</i>	S
		for the Secondary School, V, 3-4, 1982, pp.	-
		Correspondence	1980-1982
	(11)	1983. "Military medicine during and after the First World	1,000 1,02
	(11)	War – precursor of universal public health care in Canad	a".
		Canadian Defence Quarterly, XIII, 1, summer, 1983,	,
		34-42. Correspondence	1983
/055	(16)	1983. "Canada in the First World War: Exploring some	1,00
, 000	(10)	myths", History and Social Science Teacher, XVIII, 4,	
		May 1983, 193-200. [a version of this article can be	
		found in box 055, file 16]	
/053	(12)	1984. "Fenian Raids to the beaches of Normandy", in	
, 000	(1-)	Mike Filey (ed.) Toronto 150: The Celebration of Frien	ds
		(Toronto 1984) 50-55. Copy of article	1984
	(13)	1985. "Reflections on Old Fred: Major General Middleton	-/ 0 .
	(10)	and the North West Campaign", NeWest Review, May,	
		1985, 5-7. Correspondence	1985

/Box	(file) Non	Description -referred publications	Date(s)
B199	9-0023	<u>-</u>	
/053	(14)	1986. "Canada's First Expeditionary Force: The Canadian contingent in South Africa, 1899-1900", <i>Canadian Defence Quarterly</i> , XV, 3, Winter 1986, 41-46, and in Marc Milner, <i>Canadian Military History: Selected Readings</i> (Toronto: Copp Clark Pitman, 1993), 26-34. Correspondence	1985-1986
	(15)	1987. "Canada's democratic left inches ahead", <i>Dissent</i> , XXXIV, 1, Winter 1987, 28-32. Correspondence 1986	
	(16)	1987. "Travelling with Tommy: Memories of the 1965 election", <i>NeWest Review</i> , XII, 9, March 1987. Correspondence, mockup	1986-1987
	(17)	1987. "The CBC broadcast one version of Going Home: Here's what really happened at Kinmel Park", <i>Influence</i> , VI, 4, June-July, 1987, 24-7, 44.	
	(18)	Correspondence, article 1987. Background paper for Ontario Task Force for Inflation Protection for Employment Pension Plans. November 1987. Correspondence	1987 1987-1988
	(19)	1988. "Socialism ahead? Will U.S. investment suffer?", Directors and boards: The Journal of Corporate Action (Philadelphia), XII, 2, Winter 1988, 33-4.	1988
	(20)	Correspondence 1988. "Could Canada Vote for democratic socialism?",  Democratic Left, XVI, 1, January-February, 1988, 11-12. Correspondence	1988
	(21)	1988. "Levelling Canada's playing field", Dissent,	
	(22)	XXXV, 2, Spring 1988, pp. 144-7. Correspondence 1988. "Foreword" to Donald C. MacDonald, <i>The Happy Warrior: Political Memoirs</i> (Toronto: Fitzhenry &	1988
	(23)	Whiteside, 1988), 1-4. Draft, correspondence 1988. "General Worthington and the early years of the Canadian Armored Corps", <i>Gauntlet</i> [Armour School, Canadian Forces Base Gagetown], August (?), 1988.	1987
		Correspondence	1988

/Box (f	Non-	Description referred publications	Date(s)
B1999- /053	-0023		
7033	(24)	1989. "Adjust your ear-trumpets': Intellectuals and their public in Canada", <i>University of Toronto Quarterly</i> , LVIII, 4, Summer 1989, pp. 491-3. Corrected	1000
	(24a)	proof, May, 1989; correspondence 1989. "How come? A young person's history of Canada:	1989
	(24a)	Notes on a new approach". Draft, 1989-06-18	1989
	(25)	1989. "Mississauga and me: A personal memoir", Mississauga Magazine, II, 1, September 1989.	
		Draft, 18 December, 1988	1988
	(26)	1990. "The imperatives of Canadian defence". Paper prepared for the Department of National Defence, August 1990. Correspondence	1990
	(27)	1990. "The future of the past: Canadian defence policy".  Typescript, revision of 6 September 1990. 14 p. 1990	1770
	(28)	1990. "Enduring courage: The Canadian heritage of conflict". Typescript, revision of 22 November 1990.	1000
	(29)	<ul> <li>8 pp.</li> <li>1991. "Defending Canada in the 'nineties: Reflections for New Democrats" in Simon Rosenblum and Peter Finlay (eds.) <i>Debating Canada's Future: Views from the Left</i> (Toronto: Lorimer, 1991), pp. 263-280. Draft, August,</li> </ul>	1990
	(30)	1990, correspondence 1991. "The veterans experience in Canada during and after the First World Wor. 1014, 1019." Typescript, 12 Moreh	1990-1991
		the First World War, 1914-1918". Typescript, 12 March 1991	, 1991
	(31) -	- (32) 1991. "Bayonets in the streets: Canadian experience of aid of the civil power, 1867-1990" <i>Canadian Defence Quarterly</i> , XX, 5 (Spring 1991). Notes, correspondence,	
	(33)	typescript (1990-12-31) 1991. "Defence planning for an unforeseeable future", <i>Peace and Security</i> , Autumn 1991. Correspondence,	1990-1991
	(34)	typescript (1991-05-28) 1991. (and Barbara Wilson) "Kriegesgefangener: Canadian	1991
		prisoners of war in Germany, 1915-1918". Typescript (June, 1991), correspondence	1989-1992

/Box (file) Non-	Description referred publications	Date(s)
B1999-0023 /053		
(35)	1993. "Health Insurance in Canada", <i>Dissent</i> , LX, 2, spring, 1993, 148-150. Correspondence, draft, offprint	1992-1993
(36)	1993. "Disquiet on the western front", <i>University of Toronto Bulletin</i> , 46, 13 (1993-02-22), 16.	1002
(37)	Correspondence, drafts, article 1993. "Seeking the right mix", <i>Legion</i> , April 1993.	1993
(38)	Correpondence, article 1993. "Horror, valour and the CBC". Typescript	1993
(20)	(1993-07-03), correspondence	1993
(39)	1993. "Studying Canadian military history", <i>Canadian Military History</i> , II, 2, Autumn 1993, pp. 137-9. Correspondence	1993
(40)	1993. "James Shaver Woodsworth: An appreciation" in Glynford P. Allen and Barbara A. Allen, <i>Applewood:</i> A Historic Etobicoke House and the Birthplace of James Shaver Woodsworth (Etobicoke, James Shaver Woodsworth Homestead Foundation, 1993), 13-26.	
(41)	Drafts, correspondence 1993. (and Cheryl Smith) "Bearing the manly burden': Caring for soldiers' families in Canada during the First World War". Outline, research material 1993	1991-1993
(42)	1994. "Ending a success story: Closing CMR [College Militaire Royal de St-Jean]", <i>Arch</i> [Royal Military College] (graduation issue, 1994). Correspondence,	1004
(43)	draft 1994. (and J.L. Granatstein), "The War changed everything" in D.B. Scott (ed.) <i>Canada Remembers/le Canada se souvient</i> (Toronto, St. Clair Group, 1994), 74-81.	1994
(44)	Correspondence, drafts 1994. "D-Day remembered" Cover essay, <i>Maclean's</i>	1994
	Magazine, 6 June 1994, pp. 18-19. Correspondence, partial draft	1994

#### **Appendix 4: Manuscripts and publications (continued)**

/Box (	file) Description	Date(s)
	Non-referred publications	
B2000	-0010	
/002	(12) 1994. "Canadian defence policy: Civilian-military dialogue	
	of the deaf', National Network News, 3, 3 (July, 1994),	
	3-4. Correspondence, article	1994
	(13) 1995. "The NATO alliance: Do North Americans care?",	
	National Network News, 4, 2 (April 1995). Draft,	
	correspondence	1995
(14	1) 1996. Introduction to Roger Sarty, <i>The Maritime Defence</i>	
	of Canada. Typescript, correspondence	1996

#### **Book reviews**

These are arranged chronologically. Some have covering letters, but manuscripts survive for only a few of the reviews written before 1986.

B1999 /053	9-0023 (45) (46)	Book reviews Book reviews	1971-1981 1982-1985
/054	(01) (02) (03)	Book reviews Book reviews Book reviews	1986-1989 1990-1992 1993-1994
	Appen	dix 5: Addresses	

B1999-0023		
/054	(04) – (07) Correspondence re speaking engagements	1971-1994
	(08) – (11) Addresses, 1974, 1982-1984	1974-1984
/055	(01) – (03) Addresses, 1988, 1991, 1994	1988-1994

# **Appendix 6: Media productions**

/Box (file)		Description Textural Flor	Date(s)
D1000	9-0023	Textual files	
/055		'Canadian nationalism and imperialism 1967 1014' Notes	
/033	(04)	'Canadian nationalism and imperialism, 1867-1914'. Notes on slide programme	[n.d.]
	(05)	The Northwest Campaign of 1885'. Notes on slide programme [for script, see 036(02)]	1972
	(06)	'The age of social awareness'. Notes on slide programme,	
	(07)	1976-07-13	1976
	(07)	'The fourth wave'. Notes on slide programme	[n.d.]
	(08)	'The opening of the Canadian West'. Notes on slide	r 11
	(00)	programme  'The Menitoha Sahaal Overtian'. Notes on alide	[n.d.]
	(09)	'The Manitoba School Question'. Notes on slide	f., 41
	(10)	programme; script	[n.d.]
	(10)	'The Canadian general'. Notes on slide programme [n.d.]	
	(11)	'Canadian working women since 1867, Part I'. Notes	1070
	(10)	on slide programme, 1978-09-28	1978
	(12)	'Labour relations education for managerial employees	1001
	(12)	of Bell Canada' Two scripts, 8 and 9 May, 1981	1981
	(13)	'Winning the right to strike', 1981-10-06. OPSEU	
	(1.4)	seminar, 1981-11-18. Annotated text 1981	
	(14)	'The development of the Canadian left', 1982-01-22.	
	(15)	Scarborough area NDP, 1982-03-27. Annotated text 1982	
	(15)	'Putting labour history into the classroom', 1982-04-28.	
		Lecture to Ontario History and Social Science Teachers'	1002
	(1.6)	Association workshop, 1982-05-14. Annotated text	1982
	(16)	'Canada in the First World War: dispelling the myths',	
		1982-09-27. Presentation to Ontario History and Social	
		Science Teachers' Association conference, 1982-09-29.	1002
	(17)	Text, list of photos	1982
	(17)	'Members make the movement', 1982-10-04. Partial	1000
	(10)	text (annotated) by Desmond Morton to the NDP	1982
	(18)	'We stand on guard for what?' Annotated text of illustrated	L
		lecture to Canadian Forces Staff School, March 1983.	1002
	(10)	Page 10 and possibly page 12 missing	1983
	(19)	'The Crown and its employees'. List of photographs for	
	(20)	illustrated lecture	[n.d.]
	(20)	'The Canadian labour scene'. Annotated text of illustrated	1000
	(0.1)	lecture to Canadian Forces Staff College, 1983-05-20.	1983
	(21)	'Consulting with labour: Myths, memories and experience	
		1983-04-12. Annotated text of illustrated lecture to Canadi	
		Association of Labour Media seminar, 1983-06-12	1983

# Appendix 6: Media productions (continued) Textual files

B1999-0023	
/055	

(22)	'Bringing government and labour together', 1983-02-14.	
	Annotated text of speech to seminar for staff of the	
	Department of Manpower and Employment, 1983-06-26	
	and 10-16	1983
(23)	'Gordie Brigden: An appreciation'. Illustrated address to	
	Ontario NDP	[198-]
(24)	'Terry Meagher: Portrait of a unionist'. Text for slide-	
	tape presentation, 1986-04-20	1986
(25)	'Canada's American tradition', 1986-07-14. Annotated	
	illustrated lecture to a joint meeting of the OMMC and the	
	US Army Museums Association, 1987-10-07.	1987
(26)	Correspondence re sound and moving image productions	1971-1991
(27)	1974. 'Canada's First War'. Correspondence	1970-1973
(28)	1974. 'The Fourth Wave: Newcomers to Canada, 1896-	
	1914'. Correspondence	1974
(29)	1975. 'The Splendid Dream: Canadian Labour and the	
	Left'. Correspondence	1975
(30)	1977. 'The Conscription Crisis, 1917'. Correspondence	1975-1976
(31)	1979. 'The Winnipeg General Strike'. Video script	
	(1977-06-28), research material	[n.d.] - 1977
(32)	TV Ontario. 'Conflict in Canada' series. Outlines,	
	correspondence, promotion, press coverage	1980
(33)	1983. "Canada in the Forties – Filmstrip-tape treatment'.	
	Script, 1983-01-30	1983
(34)	1983. 'Canada and World War I' [sound filmstrip set].	
	Screening invitation, 22 March, 1983	
(35)	1983. 'The Canadian Constitution'. Media production:	
	Background material, correspondence, scripts	1983
(36)	National Film Board. 'Canada's Visual History' series.	
	Correspondence re adaptation of 'The North-West	
	Campaign' to CD-ROM format.	1993

#### **Appendix 6: Media productions (continued)**

#### Sound and moving image materials

The video and audio productions listed below may also relate to the textual records in this series and to the 'political and academic manuscripts' in Series 5 (and Appendix IV).

#### A. Video Productions:

B1999-0023

/001M	Morton interviews David Lewis, Jan. 1974, parts 1 & 2: 60 min: 2 tapes Dub 3/4" Umatic
/002M	Morton interviews Tommy Douglas, 26 Feb. 1975, parts 1 & 2: 60 min: 2 tapes : Dub 3/4" Umatic
/003M	Morton interviews Fred Downing, 3 March 1975, 30 min : 1 tape: Original 3/4" Umatic
/004M	'Canada's First War: The 1885 Rebellion' 1974

B. Sound recordings		
	B1999-0023	
	/001S	'Project '66: The Frail Revolutionary, J.S. Woodsworth',
		1966: 2 reels: 60 min Broadcast 1966-11-27
	/002S	'Tommy and Irma' [commentary by Desmond Morton], 1984: 1 reel: 11:10 min
	/003S	Lecture at the 75 <sup>th</sup> Anniversary of Soldier's Tower, 1998?; 1 cassette: 60 min.